
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2006, 2:00 P.M. 

SOPER FIELD, 220 COE AVENUE 
SEASIDE, CALIFORNIA 

 
WATERMASTER BOARD: 
City of Seaside – Mayor Ralph Rubio, Chairman 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Director Bob Costa, Vice Chairman 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District – Director Michelle Knight, Secretary 
City of Monterey – Mayor Dan Albert, Treasurer 
City of Sand City – Mayor David Pendergrass 
California American Water – Director Steve Leonard 
City of Del Rey Oaks – Mayor Joseph Russell 
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency - Supervisor Jerry Smith, 
        District  4 
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno  
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JULY 5, 2006 & AUGUST 2, 2006 
 

The minutes of the July 5, 2006 and August 2, 2006 Watermaster meetings are 
attached to this agenda.  Watermaster is requested to approve both meetings 
minutes.  (Attachment 1 & 2) 

 
III. REVIEW OF AGENDA 

 If there are any items that arose after the 72-hour posting deadline, a vote may be taken 
to  add the item to the agenda, pursuant to the requirements of Government Code section 
 54954.2(b).  [A 2/3-majority vote is required.] 
 

IV. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/ ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

Oral communications is on each meeting agenda in order to provide members of the 
public an opportunity to address the Watermaster on matters within its jurisdiction.  
Matters not appearing on the agenda will not receive action at this meeting but may be 
referred to the Watermaster Administrator or may be set for a future meeting.  
Presentations will be limited to three minutes or as otherwise established by the 
Watermaster.  In order that the speaker may be identified in the minutes of the meeting, 
it is helpful if speakers state their names.  Oral communications are now open 
 
 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 No items for consideration 
 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 
  

       1.   COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE (AD HOC) 
   No current report 
 

RULES AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE (AD HOC) 
No current report 
 

   TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
• Award a contract to Mr. Martin Feeney to facilitate an 

agreement on the groundwater model (sole source) 
• Approval of revised language to Judge Randall in Monitoring 

and Management Plan 
• Update on Request for Proposals (RFP) for contracting of a 

Program Manager (Oral Report) 
 
   BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 

  (See New Business—Adopt an Administrative Budget and a 
Planning and Monitoring Plan--Operational Budget and a Capital 
Replenishment Budget) 

     
 

  VII      NEW BUSINESS 
     

1. Adopt 2006 Administrative (Calendar) Year Budgets 
• Administrative Budget 
• Planning and Monitoring Plan—Operational Budget 
• Capital Replenishment Budget 

 
2. Authorize Payment of Bills 

 
VIII     NEXT MEETING DATE – OCTOBER  4, 2006 
 
    IX    ADJOURNMENT 

 
This agenda was posted at the City Clerks Office at the City of Seaside on Friday, September 8, 2006 per the Ralph M. Brown Act.  Government 
Code Section 54954.2(a).  The agenda was forwarded via e-mail to the City Clerks of Monterey, Sand City and Del Rey Oaks; the Clerk of the 
Monterey Board of Supervisors; the Clerk to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District; the Clerk at the Monterey County Water 
Resources Agency and the California  American Water Company for posting on September 8, 2006. 



REGULAR MEETING 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster  

July 5, 2006 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
Chairman Rubio called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. in the 
Seaside Community Center at Soper Field, 220 Coe Avenue, 
Seaside. 
   
Board members present: 
City of Seaside – Mayor Ralph Rubio, Chairman 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Bob Costa, Vice Chairman 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District – Director 

Michelle Knight, Secretary 
City of Sand City-Mayor David Pendergrass 
California American Water Co. – Steve Leonard 
City of Del Rey Oaks – Mayor Joseph Russell 
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency 

Jerry Smith, District 4 Supervisor (arrived later) 
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Paul Bruno 
 
Board Members absent:   
City of  Monterey – Mayor Dan Albert, Treasurer 
 
 
 
Chairman Rubio questioned page 2 of minutes regarding 
“clarification” that was needed but for what was not indicated.  
Counsel Don Freeman stated that clarification was needed for 
“allocation overages of PSR”. 
 
 
Upon a motion and second, the Watermaster Board approved, 
by a unanimous voice vote, the draft minutes of the June 7, 
2006 Watermaster meeting.  
 
There were no public comments on this agenda item.  
 
 
There were no changes to the agenda proposed by Board 
members.  
 
There were no public comments on this agenda item.  
 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
 
 

  
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF  
   June 7, 2006  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III. REVIEW OF AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 

IV. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/ORAL 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 



 
No items for consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AD HOC ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  
 
By unanimous decision, appoint a qualified person to the 
position of Chief Executive Officer.  Committee consists of 
Mayor Russell, Paul Bruno, Steven Leonard and Supervisor 
Jerry Smith.  The unanimous recommendation is Dewey 
Evans.   
 
On a motion by Mayor Russell and seconded by Paul Bruno 
and after a few questions by the Watermaster Board, the 
appointment was unanimously approved. 
 
There were no comments from the public.  
 
 
AD HOC RULES AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE 
 
No current report. 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
 
Diana Ingersoll – Judge Randall requested that 2 items 
be resubmitted :  The first being that the Laguna Seca 
alternative producers be addressed in the plan and secondly, 
the time limits of  acquisition of software data (sea water 
intrusion section of the plan). 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 
Chairman Ray Corpuz reported that the Committee would be 
meeting with Mr. Evans to work on the budget. 
 
There were no comments from the public.      
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
V. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
 
 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
VII.   NEW BUSINESS  

CLOSED SESSION—PUBLIC 
EMPLOYMENT—CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER    

 



 
No further recorded minutes were found after Closed Session 
came out of meeting. 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

              
    
VIII. NEXT MEETING DATE  

   AUGUST 2, 2006 
 
 
 
 
     IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster  

August 2, 2006 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
Vice Chairman Bob Costa called the meeting to order at 
1:45 p.m. in the Seaside Community Center at Soper Field, 
220 Coe Avenue, Seaside, CA. 
 
Board members present: 
City of Seaside--Steven Bloomer (Alternate) 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner—Bob Costa, Vice  

Chairman 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District—Director  

Michelle Knight, Secretary 
California American Water Co.—Charlie Kemp (Alternate) 
City of Del Rey Oaks—Mayor Joe Russell 
City of Monterey—Mayor Dan Albert  
City of Sand City—Mayor David Pendergrass 
Coastal Subarea Landowner—Paul Bruno 
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources –  

Supervisor Jerry Smith 
 
Board Members absent:   
City of Seaside—Mayor Ralph Rubio, Chairman 
California American Water Co.—Steve Leonard 
 
Minutes of July 5, 2006 will be provided at the regular 
September meeting. 
 
 
There were no public comments on this agenda item.  
 
In response to Vice Chairman Costa’s inquiry, there were 
no changes to the agenda proposed by Board members.  
 
There were no public comments on this agenda item.  
 
 Mr. Jeremy McLin, Manager of Mission Memorial Park 
and Funeral Home inquired about a water pipe coming into 
property and who is responsible. (will speak with Joe 
Oliver, Water Resource Manager, MPWMD, privately). 
 
For quorum consideration of the September meeting, 
Mayor Pendergrass and his alternate will be attending The 
League of California Cities meeting.  Adjustment to 
scheduled September Board meeting will be reviewed later  
 

  
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF 
July 5, 2006 

 
 

III. REVIEW OF AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IV. PUBLIC 
PARTICIPATION/ORAL 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



No items for consideration. 
 
AD HOC ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  
 
There was no report submitted and there was no action 
taken on this agenda item.   
 
 
AD HOC RULES AND REGULATIONS 
COMMITTEE 
 
There was no report submitted and there was no action 
taken on this agenda item.   
  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
 
Diana Ingersoll - July 18 Technical Committee Minutes. 
Requested by Judge Randall to review and revise 2 items of 
Sections in the Seaside Basin Monitoring & Management 
Program Plan and get back to the technical committee 
representative. 
Specifically: 
Add appendix letter (of concerns) from Laguna Seca 
representatives and the Minute Order provided by Judge 
Randall: 

1. Address Concerns of Laguna Seca  
2. Clarifications and time lines regarding  salt water 

intrusion 
The Technical Committee will finalize revisions on 8/9/06 
and then at next Board meeting approve revisions and 
forward to Judge Randall.  
 
Recommendation to contract with Mr. Martin Feeney as a 
facilitator of the ground water model. Need a proposal and 
contract. 
 
Implementation of monitoring plan needs a program 
manager to meet time lines and identify needs.  Prepare 
RFP for September meeting. 
  
On a motion by Director Paul Bruno and seconded, on an 
unanimous voice vote, the Watermaster Board approved 
modifications to the Basin Management Plan as ordered by 
Judge Randall, begin process of hiring Martin Feeney as a 
facilitator of the ground water model and start the RFP 
process to hire a overall program manager. 
 
 
 
 
 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
No current report—Pending selection of the Watermaster 
Chief Executive Officer. 
 
WATERMASTER INTERIM ADMINISTRATOR 
REPORT 
Interim Administrator Curtis Weeks reported  - Focus on 
Solutions: 
       ·Solve groundwater overdraft 
       ·Sea water intrusion 
       ·Identify timeline  
 
Approval of Employment Agreement for the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin Watermaster Chief Executive Officer 
Dewey Evans. 
 
Director Knight suggested a modification to agreement sub-
section 3.e. to add:  “shall maintain the books, accounts and 
records of the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster in 
conformance with the Judgment.” 
 
No public comment was received on this item. 
 
On a motion by Director Albert and second by Director 
Knight, with an amendment on a unanimous voice vote, the 
Watermaster Board approved the modified employment 
agreement. 
 
 
Vice Chair Costa announced that the next Watermaster 
meeting, which is scheduled for 1:30 p.m., Wednesday, 
September 13, 2006, would be held in the Seaside 
Community Center at Soper Field, 220 Coe Avenue, 
Seaside. 
 
 
Vice Chair Costa adjourned the meeting at __?___ p.m. 
until the next meeting on September 13, 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VIII. NEXT MEETING DATE 

 
 
SEPTEMBER 13, 2006, SOPER 
FIELD, SEASIDE 
 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 



Martin B. Feeney  P.G.  4634 
Consulting Hydrogeologist   C.E.G.  1454 
  C.Hg  145 

P.O. Box 23240, Ventura, CA 93002   ♦ Phone: 805/643-7710  ♦  e-mail mfeeney@ix.netcom.com  

 
September 2, 2006 

 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
c/o  Diana Ingersoll 
City of Seaside  
440 Harcourt Avenue  
Seaside, CA 93955 
 
 
Subject: Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster,  Seaside Basin Monitoring and 

Management Program:  Groundwater Modeling Component 
 
Dear Ms. Ingersoll: 
 
Presented in this proposal is a scope of work to facilitate the further groundwater modeling of the 
Seaside Basin.  The development of a groundwater model for the Seaside Basin is a required 
component of the Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program (Program) being 
developed to comply with the provisions of the recent Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication 
Judgment.  The model will be utilized to better understand the basin water balance and provide 
for improved management of the basin. 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
Several groundwater modeling efforts have been undertaken in the Seaside Basin over the last 
couple of decades.  It is understood that it is proposed to potentially develop the subject model by 
“enhancing” one of several existing models of the basin.  The previous modeling efforts in the 
basin are summarized below1. 
 

 Project Author Focus Area of Modeling 

1 MPWMD desalination Staal, Gardner & Dunne, 
Inc. (1992) 

Coastal area near Sand City  

2 Monterey Bay Shores Feeney (1999) Coastal area near SNG 
project site  

3 Sand City desalination Feeney & Williams (2002) Coastal area near Sand City  

4 Laguna Seca Phase III report Yates and others (2002) Laguna Seca subarea 

5 MPWMD desalination CDM (2004) Coastal area near Sand City  

6 Cal-Am Coastal Water Project, ASR ASR Systems (2005) Coastal and inland area near 
ASR wellfield 

7 Seaside Basin adjudication trial Durbin (2005) Basinwide area 

                                                                 
1 SOURCE DOCUMENTS: 
1.  Staal, Gardner & Dunne, Inc., 1992.  Feasibility Study, Saline Ground Water Intake/Disposal System, Sand City, 
California.  Prepared for MPWMD, September 1992 (see Appendix G). 
2.  Feeney, Martin, 1999.  Ground Water Operations and Monitoring Plan, Monterey Bay Shores Resort.  Prepared for 
SNG Development Company, August 1999. 
3.  Feeney, Martin, and Derrik Williams, 2002.  Desalination Feedwater/Concentrate Disposal System, Sand City, 
California.  Prepared for City of Sand City, July 2002 (see A ppendix C of Sand City Water Supply Project Environmental 
Impact Report, June 2004). 
4.  Yates, Eugene, Martin Feeney, and Lewis Rosenberg, 2002.  Laguna Seca Subarea Phase III Hydrogeologic Update.  
Prepared for MPWMD, November 2002 (see Appendix 2). 
5.  CDM, 2004.  MPWMD Sand City Desalination Project Feasibility Study.  Prepared for MPWMD, April 16, 2004 (see 
Appendix G). 
6.  ASR Systems, LLC, 2005.  Technical Memorandum, ASR Wellfield Conceptual Design, Modeling Analysis and 
Preliminary Environmental Assessment for California-American Water Company Coastal Water Project.  Prepared for 
California American Water, April 30, 2005. 
7.  Timothy J. Durbin, Inc., 2005.  Declaration of Timothy J. Durbin in Support of Motion for Entry of Stipulated Judgment.  
Prepared for Somach, Simmons & Dunn and California American Water, submitted October 27, 2005. 



09/05/06  Page 2 of 6 

Most of these models were developed to evaluate the impacts of proposed projects within the 
basin and are not of regional scale.  However, even if one of the existing models is not 
“enhanced” to become the new model, the existing models provide useful data that will facilitate 
the development of a new model if that is the more appropriate approach. 
 
After selection of an appropriate model for “enhancement,” or deciding to develop a new model, 
it is understood that the Board would allocate a budget, develop a scope of services for model 
development, and select a consultant to perform this work. 
 
The modeling consultant will develop, refine and calibrate the model.  From the development and 
calibration of the model, estimates of safe-yield can be further refined.   After training, the 
Watermaster Technical Board can utilize the calibrated model to evaluate basin management 
schemes such as redistribution of pumpage or artificial recharge projects. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
It is my understanding that the Board would like me to facilitate a panel of experts tasked with 
developing an approach to groundwater modeling of the basin.  The goal of the effort is to 
evaluate the existing modeling efforts and solicit opinions regarding the approach towards 
development of “the” groundwater model of the basin as required by the Program.  
 
To achieve this goal, the following scope of work has been developed: 
 
Task 1 – Project Management and Communications .   This task includes communications 
with Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster (SGBW) Board and TAC.  This will include 
progress reports, attendance at meetings, and on-going communications with TAC and Board 
members, as necessary.   
 
Task 2 – Review Existing Models – Available documentation on the existing models will be 
acquired and reviewed.  The model’s strengths and weaknesses as potential candidate for 
“enhancement” into the adopted model will be summarized.  Model assumptions and “goodness 
of fit” calibration will be discussed. 
 
Task 3 – Develop List of Participants/Schedule Meeting – Working with the TAC and Board a 
list of potential experts will be developed.  These persons will be solicited as to their interest, 
availability and fee for participation in the process.  A list of the panel members and the estimated 
cost for panel participation will summarized and submitted to the Board for approval.  After 
approval, panel members will be contacted to schedule a meeting.  After agreeing to a date for 
meeting, an appropriate venue for the meeting will be found.  Possible venues include Cal-Am’s 
conference room or MPWMD’s conference room. 
 
Task 4 -- Meeting Facilitation – Prior to the meeting, an agenda and the work product from 
Task 2 above will be distributed to panel members.  Preliminary meeting topics would include: 
 
Ø Model Purpose and Use - Expectations 
Ø Existing Models 
Ø Data Sources 
Ø Stratigraphy/Hydrostratigraphy 
Ø Boundary Conditions 
Ø Simulation Period 
Ø Calibration – What constitutes “good fit” 
Ø Parameter Sensitivity – How unique is solution? 
Ø End-user Issues – compatibility   



09/05/06  Page 3 of 6 

Minutes of the meeting will be taken and the meeting will be recorded.  After review and editing, 
minutes will be distributed to all participants.  Budget for this task includes personnel to take, edit 
and assemble meeting minutes. 
 
Task 5 – Report Preparation – After completion of the meeting(s) and receipt of input of 
interested parties, a report documenting the model review process and recommending changes to 
the model or modeling approach will be prepared.  The report will include a recommendation of 
the modeling approach to be pursued.  It is understood that the recommended model or modeling 
approach may or may not reflect a consensus of the experts.  This task also includes a 
presentation to a combined meeting of the TAC, Board and invited stakeholders. 
 

SCHEDULE 
 
It is understood that time is critical for the performance of this effort.  However, scheduling 
meetings between multiple parties can be difficult, and to not include a representative that wishes 
to attend due to scheduling conflicts, will undermine the legitimacy of the effort.  The need to 
include all interested parties could compromise the schedule.  Nevertheless, a reasonable estimate 
of a schedule is presented below. 
 

Estimated Schedule 
 

Weeks from Notice to Proceed 
Task 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Review Models        

Assemble Panel        

Panel Meeting        

TAC/Stakeholders Meeting        

Report        

 
 

COSTS 
 

Work on the subject project will be performed on a time and expense basis in accordance with my 
current fee schedule.  The above scope of work and the associated schedule and budget assume 
one meeting of the panel.  It is possible that it may be necessary to have an additional meeting.  If 
a second meeting is required, schedule and budget will need to be adjusted accordingly.  
Estimated costs broken down by task are summarized below.  A full breakdown of costs is 
attached. 
 
 

TASK  COST 
1 Project Management/Communications 2,400 
2 Review and Summarize Existing Models   3,600 
3 Coordinate Meeting  1,200 
4 Meeting (each)  1,900 
5 Prepare Report/Make Presentation 4,500 
 TOTAL $13,600 

 



09/05/06  Page 4 of 6 

CONTRACTING/INSURANCE 
 
It is assumed that the SGBW will utilize their standard contract for professional services.  Please 
provide a copy as soon as possible for review by my insurance carrier.  Alternatively, I would be 
happy to provide a copy of my standard agreement.  Please let me know your preference.  I 
maintain general, automobile, and professional errors and omissions insurance coverage with 
limits of $1,000,000. 
 
The opportunity to provide this proposal is appreciated.  Please call if you have any questions or 
would like to discuss the proposed scope of work.   
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Martin B. Feeney 
 
Attachments: 

Fee Schedule  
Estimated Fee Summary 



09/05/06  Page 5 of 6 

Martin B. Feeney, PG, CEG CHg 
Consulting Hydrogeologist 

 
 

Fee Schedule 2006 
 
 

Professional Services 
Principal Hydrogeologist        $150/hour 
Principal Hydrogeologist (field)       $115/hour 
Project Hydrogeologist        $115/hour 
Associate Hydrogeologist        $90/hour 
Word Processor         $50/hour 
Illustrator         $50/hour 
 
Equipment 
Data Logger and Transducer       $125/day 
Conductivity Meter        $75/day  
Turbidity Meter          $75/day 
 
Indirect Charges 
Reproduction         Cost + 15% 
Outside Services         Cost + 15% 
Laboratory Services        Cost + 15% 
Mileage (outside 100 mile radius)       $0.40/mile 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



09/05/06  Page 6 of 6 

SGBWP

Groundwater Model Review and Enhancement

BUDGET $13,600

Professional Service M
B

F 
O

ffi
ce

M
B

F 
Fi

el
d

A
ss

oc

W
or

d 
P

ro
c.

D
at

a 
E

nt
ry

G
ra

ph
ic

s

TASK DESCRIPTION HOURS FEE $150 $115 $110 $80 $50 $40 $50

1 Project Management/Communications 16 2,400 16
2 Review and Summarize Existing Models 24 3,600 24
3 Coordinate Meeting 8 1,200 8
4 Meeting (each) 15 1,900 10 5
5 Prepare Report/Make Presentation 30 4,500 30

  
TOTAL (LABOR) 93 13,600 88 5

   Other Direct Charges (ODC)
Number Rate$ Fee

 

SUBTOTAL (ODC)

TOTAL  COST 13,600

 



 
 

SEASIDE BASIN  
MONITORING 

AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved by the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Board  
May 17, 2006 

Revised September 5, 2006



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page i 

 
SEASIDE BASIN MONITORING 

AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM 

 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Board  

 
• Chairman:  Mayor Ralph Rubio, City of Seaside 

• Vice Chairman:  Bob Costa, Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner 
• Secretary:  Director Michelle Knight,  

Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
• Treasurer:  Mayor Dan Albert, City of Monterey 

• Mayor David Pendergrass, City of Sand City  
• Steve Leonard, California-American Water Company 

• Mayor Joseph Russell, City of Del Rey Oaks 
• Jerry Smith, District 4 Supervisor,  

Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency 
• Paul Bruno, Coastal Subarea Landowner 

 
 

Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Board Technical Committee 
 

• Chairperson:  Diana Ingersoll, Deputy City Manager – Resource Management Services, 
City of Seaside 

• Curtis Weeks, General Manager, Monterey County Water Resources Agency 
• Joe Oliver, Water Resources Manager, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

• Charles Kemp, Operations Manager, California-American Water Company 
• David Berger, General Manager, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

• John Fischer, Member of the Public 
• Steve Leonard, Vice President and Manager, California-American Water Company 

• Steve Matarazzo, Community Development Director, City of Sand City 
• Tom Reeves, City Engineer, City of Monterey 

 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page ii 

Seaside Basin Monitoring 
and Management Program 

 
 Table of Contents 

 
I. Introduction .......................................................................................................  1 

 
II. Basin Monitoring Program...............................................................................  2 

 
A.  Basin Overview ............................................................................................  2 
 
B.  Basin Monitoring Background .....................................................................  2 

1. Groundwater Production Monitoring ......................................................  2 
2. Groundwater Level Monitoring...............................................................  3 
3. Groundwater Quality Monitoring............................................................  3 
4. Surface Water Monitoring.......................................................................  4 
5. Precipitation Monitoring .........................................................................  4 
 

C.  Basin Monitor Well Construction Program..................................................  4 
1. Purpose ....................................................................................................  4 
2. Exploratory Borehole Drilling Program..................................................  6 
3. Geophysical Surveys ...............................................................................  6 
4. New Monitoring Wells ............................................................................  7 
 

D. Comprehensive Basin Production, Water Level  
      and Water Quality Program...........................................................................  7 

1. Purpose ....................................................................................................  7 
2. Creation of Consolidated Basic Groundwater Resource Database .........  8 
3. Monitoring of Coastal “Sentinel” Monitor Wells ...................................  8 

a) Water Level Monitoring....................................................................  8 
b) Water Quality Monitoring .................................................................  8 

4. Monitoring of Inland Monitor Wells.......................................................  9 
a) Water Level Monitoring....................................................................  9 
b) Water Quality Monitoring ................................................................. 10 

5. Monitoring of Production Wells.............................................................. 10 
a) Water Level Monitoring.................................................................... 10 
b) Water Quality Monitoring ................................................................. 10 

6. Reporting of Monitoring Data ................................................................. 10 
 

E.  Estimated Monitoring Program Costs .......................................................... 10 
 

III. Basin Management Program............................................................................ 18  
 

A. Development of a Seaside Basin Management Program ............................. 18 
1. Program Objectives ................................................................................. 18 
2. Program Development............................................................................. 18 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page iii 

3. Key Program Elements............................................................................ 18 
 

IV. Seawater Intrusion Contingency Program ..................................................... 20 
 

A. Objective ....................................................................................................... 20 
 
B. Seawater Intrusion Analysis .......................................................................... 20 

1. Seawater Intrusion – Description of Problem and Process ..................... 20 
2. Seawater Intrusion – Definition .............................................................. 20 
3. Description of Water Quality Related to Seawater Intrusion.................. 21 
4. Data Analysis Tools and Data Analysis .................................................. 21 
 

C. Actions to be Taken Subsequent to Detection of Seawater  
      Within a Coastal Well ................................................................................... 24 
 
D. Efforts to Redistribute or Replace Water Lost Because  
      of Seawater Intrusion Contingency Plan ....................................................... 25 

 
V. Basin Monitoring and Management Program Implementation Schedule ...26 

 
List of Figures 
 
Figure 1.  Location of the Seaside Groundwater Basin................................................... 12 
Figure 2.  Location of Production and Monitor Wells  

In and Near the Seaside Basin ........................................................................ 13 
Figure 3.  Location of Existing Coastal Groundwater Quality Monitor Wells  

In and Near the Seaside Basin ........................................................................ 14 
Figure 4.  Location of Existing Coastal Sentinel Monitor Well Sites  

and Proposed Monitor Well Sites (Coastal and Inland)  
In and Near the Seaside Basin ........................................................................ 15 

Figure 5. Schedule by Task for Select Basin Monitoring Program Elements................ 16 
Figure 6. “Order of Magnitude” Cost Estimate Summary  

for Basin Monitoring Program Portion ........................................................... 17 
 
Appendices ................................................................................................................... 27  
 
Appendix 1.  Exhibit A of the Decision in the Superior Court  

of the State of California in and for the County of Monterey,  
Case No. M66343 

Appendix 2.  Expanded Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan,  
by the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

Appendix 3.  Letter from Kronick Moskovitz Tiedemann and Girard,  
 dated May 17, 2006 on the proposed Seaside Basin Monitoring Plan 
Appendix 4.  Minute Order re:  Request for Approval of the  
 Seaside Monitoring and Management Program 
 Dated June 20, 2006



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 1 

 
 

Seaside Basin Monitoring 
and Management Program 

 

I. 
Introduction 

 

This Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program (“Program”) is adopted by the Seaside 
Basin Watermaster to comply with the Judgment entered in the Seaside Groundwater Basin 
Adjudication (California American Water v. City of Seaside, Monterey County Superior Court, 
Case Number M66343) and to ensure that the Seaside Groundwater Basin (“Basin”) is protected 
and managed as a perpetual source of water for beneficial uses.  

The Judgment required the preparation of a comprehensive monitoring and management plan for 
the Seaside Basin (Monitoring and Management Plan”) consistent with the criteria set forth in 
Exhibit A (Appendix 1) of the Judgment. The Technical Committee appointed by the Seaside 
Basin Watermaster Board has chosen to name this document the “Program” versus the “Plan” 
referred to in the Judgment. This was necessary to clarify that the tasks and schedule set forth in 
this document is the program that will create the Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management 
Plan. 

The Program sets forth actions that will be taken to: (a) monitor current overdraft conditions and 
the present threat of potential seawater intrusion into the Coastal Subarea of the Basin; (b) 
develop and import supplemental water supplies for the purpose of eliminating Basin overdraft 
and the associated threat of seawater intrusion, and (c) establish procedures that will be 
implemented to address seawater intrusion should seawater intrude into the onshore portions of 
the Basin.  All costs of undertaking the actions set forth within this Program shall be paid from 
the Monitoring and Management Program component of the Watermaster Budget, set forth in 
Section III.L.3.J.iv of the Judgment.  The Court’s Decree calls for the Seaside Basin 
Watermaster to develop a Basin Management Program within one year of the Court’s judgment.   
The following is a description of the scope of work for the management program, the monitoring 
program and schedule that will be undertaken by the Watermaster over the next 12 to 18 months 
to complete the Basin Management Program. 

 
 
 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 2 

II. 
Basin Monitoring Program 

 

A.  Basin Overview  
 

The Seaside Groundwater Basin has been characterized as underlying an approximately 19 
to 24 square mile area at the northwestern corner of the Salinas Valley, adjacent to 
Monterey Bay.  The general location of the basin and its four subareas are shown in Figure 
1, which is from a study updating the condition of the basin completed by the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD) in 2005 (Yates and others, 2005.  Seaside 
Groundwater Basin:  Update on Water Resource Conditions.  Prepared for MPWMD, April 
14, 2005).  The basin underlies a hilly coastal plain that slopes northward toward the Salinas 
Valley and westward toward Monterey Bay.  The basin area includes Sand City, a portion of 
Monterey, and much of the cities of Seaside and Del Rey Oaks, as well as a portion of 
unincorporated Monterey County.  In addition, the basin underlies most of the land occupied 
by the former Fort Ord military base. The basin consists of a sedimentary sequence of 
water-bearing materials that overly the relatively impermeable shales of the Monterey 
Formation.  The two principal geologic units in terms of water supply potential are known 
as the “Paso Robles aquifer”, consisting of interbedded sand, gravel and clay deposits of 
continental origin, and the underlying “Santa Margarita aquifer”, consisting of a loose to 
weakly-cemented marine sandstone. 

 

B.  Basin Monitoring Background 

Current water resource monitoring in the Seaside Groundwater Basin can be categorized into 
the following five principal types:  groundwater production monitoring, groundwater level 
monitoring, groundwater quality monitoring, surface water monitoring, and precipitation 
monitoring.  The history of development and current status of each category is briefly 
reviewed in this section. 

 
1.  Groundwater Production Monitoring 
  

The early history of groundwater development in the Seaside Basin was not well 
documented.  Prior to about 1950, the majority of groundwater extractions in the coastal 
area were assumed to be associated with small farming operations.  The earliest recorded 
production dates to the mid-1950’s, when municipal wells were installed in the coastal 
area of the basin by several small water systems that were acquired in the mid-1960’s and 
subsequently consolidated into the main California American Water (Cal-Am) system 
that serves the Monterey Peninsula area.  Other early metered production records were 
kept for wells in the coastal area supplying Fort Ord and the City of Seaside.  A 
coordinated program of collecting and reporting groundwater production in the basin was 
established by the MPWMD in 1980.  This program requires annual reporting of water 
production (surface water and groundwater) from all sources within the MPWMD’s 
boundary, which encompasses most of the Seaside Basin area.  Currently, there is no 
surface water production from the Seaside Basin, and the only known groundwater 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 3 

production occurring within the basin outside of the MPWMD boundary is limited to 
production from Monterey County Parks Department wells at the eastern end of the 
Laguna Seca subarea of the Seaside Basin.  In addition to the annual reporting 
requirement, MPWMD regulations require more comprehensive management for the Cal-
Am water distribution system, as this system derives its supply from more than one 
hydrological management unit (i.e., the Carmel River Basin and Seaside Basin).  This is 
accomplished under MPWMD regulations through the Quarterly Water Supply Budget 
Strategy program, in which projected production quantities for each of Cal-Am’s 
production sources are developed on a quarterly basis, and actual production is tracked 
daily.   

 
2.  Groundwater Level Monitoring 

 
The earliest groundwater level data collected in the Seaside Basin were from the 
municipal wells in the coastal area, beginning in the mid-1950’s.  The coverage was 
sparse, however, and limited to a small area of the basin.  Water level data collection in 
the coastal area became more consistent when Cal-Am began operations in the mid-
1960’s, but the lack of long-term, spatially-distributed groundwater level data 
compromised the ability to rigorously assess the condition of the basin in studies 
conducted during the 1970’s and 1980’s.  The Monterey County Water Resources 
Agency (MCWRA) periodically monitored several wells in the basin until that 
monitoring was curtailed due to budget constraints in the early 1990’s.  Basic 
groundwater data collection improved beginning at that same time as the MPWMD 
undertook a program of installing dedicated monitor wells in each aquifer at key 
locations in and near the coastal area of the basin.  A network of dedicated monitor wells 
was preferable in that the water level data are more indicative of conditions outside of the 
direct influence of production wells.  The dedicated monitor well network has been 
expanded since then, and is now comprised of 24 wells at 14 locations in and near the 
coastal and northern portions of the basin, and an additional 16 wells at 12 locations in 
and near the Laguna Seca subarea.  The locations of monitor and production wells in and 
near the basin are shown on Figure 2.  Presently, the MPWMD collects water level data 
monthly from 19 of the 24 monitor wells in and near the coastal subareas.  Seven of these 
monitor wells are also equipped with automatic dataloggers (i.e., recording pressure 
transducer units) set to record hourly water levels to complement monitoring as part of 
the MPWMD Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) program in the basin.  The MPWMD 
collects water level data semi-annually (in Spring and Fall to correspond with anticipated 
seasonal high and low water levels) from 16 monitor wells in and near the Laguna Seca 
subarea.  In addition to water levels collected by the MPWMD, Cal-Am currently collects 
and reports to MPWMD monthly water levels from 14 active and inactive production 
wells in the coastal subareas, and 7 wells in the Laguna Seca subarea.  . 

 
3.  Groundwater Quality Monitoring 
 

Historically, groundwater quality data were sparse and were not readily available to 
adequately support characterization of groundwater quality in the basin in the early 
resource studies conducted in the 1970’s and 1980’s.  In the early 1990’s, the MPWMD 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 4 

began a program to collect groundwater quality data from coastal monitor wells in the 
basin.  This program has been expanded since then and now includes twelve (12) monitor 
wells at six (6) locations (Figure 3).  Groundwater quality samples are currently collected 
annually and analyzed for a suite of inorganic parameters (i.e., general minerals) to assess 
long-term trends or changes that could indicate seawater intrusion.  Based on the 
assessment of data from the MPWMD coastal monitor wells, there has been no indication 
of seawater intrusion into either of the basin’s principal aquifers – the Paso Robles 
Formation or Santa Margarita Sandstone.  In addition to the groundwater quality data 
collected by the MPWMD from its coastal wells, both the City of Seaside and Cal-Am 
collect complete general mineral groundwater quality data at least annually from their 
municipal production wells that serve water for potable use, as per requirements from the 
California Department of Health Services. 

 
4.  Surface Water Monitoring 
 

Because dune sands cover much of the land area over the basin, precipitation falling on 
the basin does not produce appreciable surface runoff but directly infiltrates through the 
sandy soils.  The exception is Arroyo Del Rey, which drains a portion of the Laguna Seca 
subarea.  The U.S. Geological Survey measured discharge from this channel at Del Rey 
Oaks from 1966 to 1978, when this recording station was discontinued.  The MPWMD 
re-established this as a recording station in 2002, and continuous streamflow records are 
currently maintained for this site. 

 
5.  Precipitation Monitoring   
 

There are no long-term records of precipitation from monitoring stations within the 
Seaside Basin.  Accordingly, basin precipitation estimates in previous water resources 
investigations have been based on records from nearby recording stations.  The recent 
hydrogeologic assessment of the basin conducted for Cal-Am relied primarily on long-
term records available from the National Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration 
(NOAA) Station #045795 in Monterey (CH2M HILL, 2004, Hydrogeologic Assessment 
of the Seaside Groundwater Basin.  Prepared for Somach, Simmons & Dunn and 
California American Water, January 2004.  See page 2-2). 

  
 

C.  Basin Monitor Well Construction Program 

1.  Purpose 
 

Notwithstanding the current groundwater monitoring efforts as described above, the 
Court recognizes that the present monitor well network is lacking adequate coverage in 
and near the Northern Coastal subarea of the basin, considered to be most vulnerable to 
seawater intrusion.  Additionally, there are few existing monitor well control points to 
adequately define conditions along the northern basin boundary in the Northern Inland 
subarea.  This section describes the Watermaster’s planned exploratory drilling and 
monitor well construction activities that are designed to enhance the efficiency and utility 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 5 

of the existing basin monitoring network.  This program is based on the description 
provided in Exhibit A of the Decision, attached as Appendix 1 of this program.  Any 
proposed departures from that description and the basis for them are also described 
herein. 

 
To ensure that the coastal area is adequately monitored to detect potential seawater 
intrusion, exploratory drilling, geophysical surveying and monitor well construction will 
be undertaken.  Based on current knowledge of the availability of existing subsurface 
control points in and near the coastal area of the basin, monitor wells shall be initially 
constructed at a minimum of four (4) additional coastal “sentinel” monitor well sites 
(“Sentinel” monitor well sites refers to the network of monitor well sites closest to the 
coastline in and near the Seaside Basin, which can serve as a first line of defense in 
detecting potential seawater intrusion) at approximately 3,000 feet spacing, in the area 
along the coast northeast of existing monitor well “WMD-PCA-W”.  It is anticipated that 
the four coastal sites will be selected from the six potential target areas sites that are 
shown on Figure 4.  Four sites are in a line near the coastline and two sites are slightly 
farther from the coastline and in between the most coastal sites, to provide secondary 
coverage if seawater intrusion should occur in narrow lobes or fingers.  The actual 
locations for the new coastal “sentinel” well sites must be carefully selected based on 
nearness to the coastline, coastal erosion potential, site logistics, and long-term access 
constraints. 

 
In addition, two (2) inland sites near the northern basin boundary shall be selected for 
exploratory drilling and monitor well construction.  The recommended target areas for 
these sites are also shown on Figure 4.  Information developed from these inland sites 
will support an improved understanding of the occurrence and nature of the aquifer 
systems and groundwater levels in the vicinity of the northern basin boundary where 
there are no existing monitor or production wells, and will support long-term monitoring 
in the basin. 

 
As a planning goal, it is anticipated that these new monitor well installations can be 
completed within approximately 18 months of the Court’s approval of this document, as 
shown in Figure 5.  A breakdown of the proposed schedule by task is also included in 
Section V.  Based on previous experiences by the MPWMD in installing similar coastal 
and inland monitor wells in the basin, land availability, authorization and access are key 
issues that must be overcome to successfully site and construct the monitor wells.  The 
optimal locations for the new coastal monitor wells are along the coastal bluffs of the 
former Fort Ord military base, on land that is currently under the jurisdiction of the U.S. 
Army, but ultimately planned for transfer to the California Department of Parks and 
Recreation (CDPR).  Accordingly, approval of such activity in this area of former Fort 
Ord will require the acquisition of a long-term easement, and will likely include 
authorizations from the Army Base Realignment And Closure (BRAC) office, the Fort 
Ord Reuse Authority (FORA), the County of Monterey, and the CDPR.  As an alternate 
option, if land use approvals prove too difficult or lengthy for the coastal bluff locations, 
consideration will be given to siting the new coastal monitor wells along the inactive 
railroad alignment through the former Fort Ord coastal area.  The Transportation Agency 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 6 

of Monterey County (TAMC) has recently acquired this property from the Union Pacific 
Railroad.  Sites along the railroad alignment are less ideal in that they are approximately 
500 to 1,500 feet farther from the coastline than the coastal bluff sites, but the approval 
process for use of these sites is anticipated to be less time consuming, and the MPWMD 
has already initiated discussions with TAMC on this issue.  In any event, additional 
documentation from the Court endorsing its order to install the additional coastal monitor 
wells may be beneficial for the Watermaster to receive timely authorization for these 
monitor well installations. 

  
As explained above, given the complexity of land use constraints and jurisdictional 
authority in the local setting, it is not likely that the exploratory drilling program can be 
conducted in the precise fashion described in Exhibit A of the Decision.  Additionally, it 
is not envisioned that the exploratory drilling and geophysical surveys will be conducted 
as separate advance activities to facilitate subsequent siting of the new monitor well 
locations.  Rather, monitor well clusters shall be installed at each of the carefully selected 
sites described above, with monitor well design and number of wells at each site guided 
by the lithologic and geophysical data to be collected in the manner described below.  
This is based on the MPWMD’s past experience with exploratory drilling in the basin, 
wherein the actual occurrence of, and lithologic conditions within, each aquifer were 
variable from site to site, making it difficult to presume the monitor well designs and 
number of wells to be completed in advance.  It is also noted that timely completion of 
the exploratory drilling and monitor well installation program described herein will 
require specialized drilling contractor services that may not be available locally, and 
could be limited by contractor availability. 
 
 

2.  Exploratory Borehole Drilling Program 
 

A pilot borehole shall be constructed at each site, with the total depth targeted for the top 
of the Monterey Formation, which represents the effective base of the freshwater bearing 
formations at nearby locations in the basin.  Total drilling depth at each site is anticipated 
to be 1,500 to 2,500 feet.  Borehole lithologic samples (i.e., grab samples) shall be 
collected at ten-foot intervals (with the exception of any depths in the borehole at which 
continuous core samples can be collected).  All collected lithologic samples shall be 
prepared and placed into labeled cases for storage and future inspection.   

 
3.  Geophysical Surveys 

 
Upon completion of pilot drilling to the total depth, a complete suite of open borehole 
geophysical logs shall be run, including resistivity, spontaneous potential, caliper, 
temperature, gamma ray, and electromagnetic conductivity (EM) logs.  These 
geophysical logs will provide a basis for describing the distribution of aquifers, 
occurrence of fine-grained interbeds and confining units between aquifers, water quality 
variations with depth, and the nature of groundwater flow and potential seawater 
intrusion, as was completed for a recent similar deep coastal monitor well construction 
project to the north of the Seaside Basin in the City of Marina (Hanson and others, 2002.  



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 7 

Geohydrology of a Deep-Aquifer System Monitoring-Well Site at Marina, Monterey 
County, California.  U.S. Geological Survey Water-Resources Investigations Report 02-
4003.  Prepared in cooperation with the Monterey County Water Resources Agency (see 
page 12 for geophysical data description).  In addition to the borehole geophysical logs, 
additional geophysical logging shall be conducted on the deepest cased well at each site 
and shall include gamma ray and EM logs.  This additional logging will allow for 
comparisons with future annual geophysical logging surveys at each site as part of the 
ongoing monitoring program for early detection of salinity changes (i.e., potential 
seawater intrusion) into discrete zones within the aquifer system, that may otherwise go 
undetected by standard water quality sample collection. 
 

5.  New Monitoring Wells 
 

Monitor well design shall be by multiple-well clusters at each site, either in the same or 
separate boreholes, unless an alternate well construction technique is authorized.  Where 
present at each site, separate well casing strings shall be constructed with screened 
intervals within each recognized aquifer of the basin (e.g., Aromas Sand, Paso Robles, 
Santa Margarita) to provide a detailed vertical characterization of water levels and quality 
through the aquifer system.  If observed conditions warrant, more than one well casing 
may be installed in each aquifer to more discretely characterize variable conditions in 
specific zones within the aquifer; however, this cannot be determined in advance of the 
exploratory drilling, as described above.  For estimating purposes, it is assumed that four 
(4) wells will be installed at each well site cluster.  The screened interval of each casing 
string shall be separated from other well completions by isolation seals if multiple wells 
are constructed in the same borehole.  Each monitor well casing shall be a minimum two-
inch inside diameter, and the deepest casing string at each well cluster shall be a 
minimum three-inch inside diameter to accommodate cased well geophysical logging 
tools. 

 
 
D.  Comprehensive Basin Production, Water Level and Water Quality Program  

1.  Purpose  

The comprehensive monitoring program described herein is intended to guide ongoing 
data collection efforts in the basin to efficiently and economically provide the pertinent 
groundwater resource data that will establish a defensible basis for future decision-
making by the Watermaster.  Monitoring data collection tasks are described according to 
well location in or near the Seaside Basin.  Coastal “sentinel” monitor wells refers to the 
closest monitor well sites to the coastline.  Inland monitor wells refers to the monitor well 
locations in and near the Northern Inland and Laguna Seca subareas, and those monitor 
wells in the Southern and Northern Coastal subareas that are not included in the coastal 
sentinel monitor well network.  “Production wells” refers to such wells in all four 
subareas of the basin. 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 8 

2.  Creation of Consolidated Basic Groundwater Resource Database   

Currently, groundwater resource monitoring within the Seaside Basin is being conducted 
by several entities as described above in Section B.  Basin Monitoring Background.  A 
consolidated database will allow pertinent groundwater data to be more efficiently 
organized, managed and housed in a single location to facilitate:  (a) ongoing data 
collection efforts, (b) data storage and retrieval, (c) distribution of basic data to 
Watermaster members and other interested parties, and (d) preparation of annual and 
periodic reports to the Watermaster.  A database shall be created to contain all pertinent 
historical basic groundwater resource data (i.e., well production, level, quality) with 
proper annotations as to data sources, as well as all ongoing groundwater resource data 
collected on behalf of the Watermaster.  The database will also include pertinent 
information on well type, location and construction details.  In addition to the data 
organizational benefit, the consolidated database is intended to resolve any differences or 
discrepancies in existing datasets that have been compiled by separate entities.  The 
MPWMD currently maintains a groundwater database that includes some of the features 
described herein.  The Watermaster will need to determine if the MPWMD’s database 
should be expanded or a new database should be created for this purpose.  A breakdown 
of the proposed schedule by task is shown on Figure 5, and also is included in Section V. 

3.  Monitoring of Coastal “Sentinel” Monitor Wells  

a) Water Level Monitoring 

All coastal sentinel monitor wells (existing and proposed) shall be monitored on at 
least a monthly interval to record manual water level measurements.  In addition, all 
coastal sentinel monitor wells shall be equipped with automatic dataloggers to 
continuously record groundwater levels in each aquifer measured.   The dataloggers 
will be set to record no less frequently than a daily interval and will be downloaded at 
least quarterly.  The dataloggers will be calibrated/confirmed initially and on at least a 
quarterly basis with the manual water level measurements.  All collected data will be 
entered into the consolidated groundwater resource database on a quarterly basis. 

b) Water Quality Monitoring 

All coastal sentinel monitor wells (existing and proposed) shall be sampled on a 
quarterly interval by extraction of water samples (using standard sampling protocols) 
for chemical analysis by a state-approved laboratory.  Parameters to be analyzed will 
at a minimum include the full general inorganic mineral suite.  All collected water 
quality data will be entered into the consolidated groundwater resource database on a 
quarterly basis.  Proposed new monitor wells may be sampled on a more frequent 
basis during the first year after construction to establish water quality variability at 
these locations.  In addition, all coastal sentinel monitor wells (existing and proposed) 
shall be equipped with automatic dataloggers to continuously record groundwater 
quality (electrical conductivity and/or chloride) in each aquifer measured.  The 
dataloggers will be set to record no less frequently than a daily interval and will be 
downloaded at least quarterly.  The dataloggers will be calibrated/confirmed initially 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 9 

and at least quarterly with the chemical analysis data collected at each monitor well.  
On an annual basis, geophysical logs will be run at the deepest well at each of the 
new coastal sentinel monitor well sites.  Also, an existing inactive Cal-Am production 
well in the Northern Coastal subarea, known as the “Del Monte Test” well, will be 
evaluated for possible inclusion with the coastal sentinel monitor well network. 

4.  Monitoring of Inland Monitor Wells  

a) Water Level Monitoring 
 

All inland monitor wells (existing and proposed) shall be monitored for water levels 
on at least a quarterly interval (This is an increased frequency from the semi-annual to 
annual water level monitoring recommended in the report:  Yates and others, 2002, 
Laguna Seca Subarea, Phase III Hydrogeologic Update, prepared for MPWMD, 
November 2002 (see page 65)).  In addition, at least two monitor well sites in the 
Laguna Seca subarea shall be equipped with automatic dataloggers to continuously 
record groundwater levels in each aquifer measured  (This follows from a 
recommendation to instrument monitor wells to better understand water level 
variations in the report:  Yates and others, 2002, Laguna Seca Subarea, Phase III 
Hydrogeologic Update, prepared for MPWMD, November 2002.  See page 65).  The 
dataloggers will be set to record no less frequently than a daily interval and will be 
downloaded at least quarterly.  The dataloggers will be calibrated/confirmed initially 
and on at least a quarterly basis with the manual water level measurements.  All 
collected data will be entered into the consolidated groundwater resource database on  
a quarterly basis. 
 
It is noted that there are few existing monitor or production wells in parts of the 
Laguna Seca and Southern Coastal Subareas (refer to Figure 2), from which ongoing 
water level data collection would be of use in obtaining pertinent groundwater 
resource data.  With few exceptions, data from existing wells could not be utilized to 
improve the basic hydrogeologic understanding and ultimate groundwater simulation 
modeling of the aquifer flow system from the Laguna Seca Subarea to the coast.  
Accordingly, in addition to the water level monitoring described above, it will be 
necessary for the Program to include, as an additional task, the investigation of 
potential existing or new monitor well sites that can be added at key locations in the 
Laguna Seca and Southern Coastal Subareas.  As a part of this task, recommendations 
as to how to accomplish this objective will be developed.  These new wells will 
facilitate improvement to the monitor well network.  In addition, the Program will 
include as a further task, investigation of whether water quality constituents in 
groundwater originating from the Laguna Seca Subarea should be analyzed to 
improve the basic hydrogeologic understanding in order to compliment groundwater 
simulation modeling of the aquifer flow system from the Laguna Seca Subarea to the 
coast.   



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 10 

 
b) Water Quality Monitoring 

Regularly scheduled water quality monitoring is not anticipated for the inland 
monitor wells, with the following exceptions:  (a) the full general inorganic mineral 
suite of parameters shall be analyzed initially and quarterly for the first year, for any 
newly-constructed inland monitor wells to characterize background water quality at 
new locations, and (b) any water quality monitoring as part of special studies that 
may be directed by the Watermaster. 

5.  Monitoring of Production Wells  

a) Water Level Monitoring  

All active and inactive production wells in the basin owned and/or operated by a 
Watermaster member shall have static (i.e., non-pumping) water levels collected and 
recorded a minimum of once per month.  It shall be the responsibility of each 
owner/operator of a Watermaster member production well to report monthly water 
level measurements to the Watermaster on an annual basis for inclusion of these data 
in the consolidated groundwater resource database. 

b) Water Quality Monitoring 

All active production wells in the coastal subareas of the basin owned and/or operated 
by a Watermaster member shall have a water quality sample from each well collected 
and analyzed by a state-approved laboratory for the full general inorganic mineral 
suite a minimum of once per year.  It shall be the responsibility of each 
owner/operator of a Watermaster member production well to report water quality 
analytical results to the Watermaster on an annual basis for inclusion of these data in 
the consolidated groundwater resource database. 

6.  Reporting of Monitoring Data 

It is anticipated that initially the Watermaster shall receive and distribute to members 
and interested parties a summary report of water resources data collected on behalf of 
the Watermaster on a quarterly basis.  The quarterly reports shall include the 
reporting of water level and water quality data collected from the existing and 
proposed monitor wells as described herein.  In addition, the monitor well data shall 
be summarized along with other information required in the Watermaster annual 
reports to be prepared and filed with the Court.  Groundwater monitoring data will be 
prepared to conform to State Standards where appropriate or required. 

 

E.  Estimated Monitoring Program Costs 

At this time only a preliminary “order of magnitude” estimate (“Order of magnitude” cost 
estimates refers to approximate costs with an estimated accuracy of +/- 40%.) of costs is 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 11 

available for the basin monitoring functions described in this Program.  It is anticipated that 
refined costs will be available once proposals for exploration, monitoring and data 
management have been received, reviewed and authorized by the Watermaster.  One-time 
costs for exploratory drilling, geophysical surveying and monitor well construction are 
estimated at $1,080,000.  One-time costs for development of the basic groundwater database, 
and purchase and installation of water level/water quality dataloggers are estimated at 
$62,000.  First year annual costs for groundwater database maintenance, and coastal and 
inland well monitoring are estimated at $61,680.  A more detailed breakdown of estimated 
monitoring program costs is included in Figure 6. “Order of Magnitude” Cost Estimate 
Summary for Basin Monitoring Program Portion.  



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 12 

 

Figure 1.  Location of the Seaside Groundwater Basin 

 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 13 

 

Figure 2.  Location of Production and Monitor Wells in and Near the Seaside Basin 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 14 

 

Figure 3.  Location of Existing Coastal Groundwater Quality Monitor Wells 
in an Near the Seaside Basin 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 15 

 

Figure 4.  Location of Existing Coastal Sentinel Monitor Well Sites and Proposed 
Monitor Well Sites (Coastal and Inland) In and Near the Seaside Basin



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 16 

 

 
 

Figure 5.  Schedule by Task for Select Basin Monitoring Program Elements 
 
 
 

  Duration    

No. Task (Days) Start Finish 
      
 Basin Monitor Well Construction Program   
    

1 Develop scope of services and RFP for consultant program oversight 60 7/1/2006 8/31/2006  

2 Review proposals, secure oversight consultant contract 30 9/1/2006 9/30/2006  

3 Oversight consultant completes site acquisition approvals 180 10/1/2006 3/31/2007  

4 Develop scope of services and request bids for drilling/monitor wells 90 1/1/2007 3/31/2007  

5 Review bids, secure contract(s) 30 4/1/2007 4/30/2007  

6 Drill, equip and collect initial monitoring data 150 5/1/2007 9/30/2007  

7 Prepare and submit completion report to Watermaster 60 9/1/2007 10/31/2007  

     
 Creation of Consolidated Basic Groundwater Resource Database     

      

1 Develop database RFP 30 7/1/2006 7/31/2006  

2 Review proposals, select consultant 30 8/1/2006 8/31/2006  

3 Develop and approve database format 30 9/1/2006 9/30/2006  

4 Populate database (historical data from all sources) 60 10/1/2006 11/30/2006  

5 Populate database (current monitoring data) 30 12/1/2006 12/31/2006  

6 Prepare database documentation report 30 1/1/2007 1/31/2007  
 

Prepared for Seaside Basin Watermaster, May 2006



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 17 

Figure 6.  Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program “Order of Magnitude”  
                  Cost Estimate Summary for Basin Monitoring Program Portion 
 

 
Task 

Cost / 
Unit 

 # of 
Units

Cost / 
Site 

 # of 
Sites 

One-Time 
Cost 

Annual 
Cost 

       

Exploratory drilling / geophysical surveying / monitor well 
construction 

   

     Assume average TD = 1,800 feet; $100/ft lump sum $100 1800 $180,000 6 $1,080,000  
    
Basic groundwater resource database    
     Develop / populate: 200 hours $70 200   $14,000  
     Annual maintenance:  40 hours/quarter x 4/yr $70 160   $11,200
    
Monitoring of coastal "sentinel" monitor wells    
     Purchase/install WL/WQ dataloggers (6 existing wells; 
     16 new wells) $2,000 22

  
$44,000

 

     Manual WL monitoring:  8 hrs/mo x 12 mo/yr $70 96    $6,720
     WQ sample collection:  3 hrs/pers/site x 2 pers x 4/yr $70 24 $1,680 8  $13,440
     WQ sample lab analyses:  $200/sample gen. Minerals x 
      4/yr x 22 wells $200 4

  
22 $17,600

     Annual maintenance, WL/WQ dataloggers:   
     16   hrs/quarter x 4/yr $70 64

  
$4,480

     Annual geophysical surveys $1,500  4 $6,000
    
Monitoring of inland monitor wells    
     Manual WL monitoring:  8 hrs/quarter x 4/yr $70 32   $2,240
     Purchase/install WL/WQ dataloggers (2 existing wells) $2,000 2   $4,000  
    
    

TOTAL ONE-TIME COST   $1,142,000  
TOTAL ANNUAL COST (first year)   $61,680

    
       

 
NOTES:   
 
1.  Cost estimates are at the preliminary “order of magnitude” level, with estimated accuracy of 

+/- 40%.   
 
2.  Cost estimates are subject to change as plans and scope are refined by Watermaster 

 
 
 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 18 

 
 
 

III. 
Basin  Management Program 

 
A.  Development of a Seaside Basin Management Plan  
 
      1.  Program Objectives 
 

The objectives of the Basin Management Program, as stated in the Court’s Decision, are to 
optimize groundwater pumping, control seawater intrusion, and return the Basin to 
equilibrium through implementation of conservation methods, through the importation of 
supplemental water for direct use and Basin replenishment.   The Program will serve as 
the technical roadmap for future basin management decisions to achieve the management 
objectives in a cost-effective manner while balancing potential socio-economic impacts to 
users of Seaside Basin groundwater.  The Program will be developed in a way that 
provides flexibility in the future to respond to changing conditions in the basin and new 
information that becomes available as the basin monitoring program is implemented. 

 
  2.  Program Development 
 

The Watermaster will oversee the development of the plan, utilizing member agency staff 
expertise and/or consultants where appropriate to conduct detailed technical analyses and 
investigations.   The Watermaster should seek available grants and loans for plan 
development through the California Department of Water Resources or from other 
resources available to assist in alternative regional solutions that support the plan.  

 
3.  Key Program Elements 

 
The Seaside Basin Management program will consist of the following key elements: 

 
a. Development and implementation of a program for collecting and analyzing data 

related to groundwater production, water levels, water use, land use, rainfall, and 
other pertinent information useful in managing the basin.  The Plan will outline the 
criteria and protocol to be used in triggering basin management actions.  The 
MPWMD currently has an extensive data collection and management system that 
includes much of the data that will be required as part of the Seaside Basin 
Management Program.   The MPWMD program will be evaluated during Plan 
development for use as a base upon which necessary data collection and storage 
enhancements can be made. 

 
b. Development of an enhanced Seaside Basin groundwater model to be used in 

developing improved estimates of natural and secondary basin recharge, Total 
Useable Storage Space for the Seaside Basin, Operating Safe Yield, Natural Safe 
Yield, and basin management strategies. In addition, the modeling effort will asses 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 19 

whether relocation of production from existing wells can be achieved to optimize the 
Natural Safe Yield within the Coastal and Laguna Seca subareas of the Basin.  
Technical consultants will be utilized for the task of developing a model and 
modifying existing groundwater models wherever possible.  Existing models that will 
be evaluated for modification include but are not limited to: Laguna Seca Phase III 
Report (Yates et. al 2002), Sand City Desalination studies (Feeney & Williams, 
2004), and Seaside Basin adjudication trial model (Durbin, 2005).   No model 
development cost estimates have been provided in this document.  A formal technical 
review of the models will be conducted in order to develop a scope of work and 
budget for the project.   

 
 

c. Development of recommendations regarding implementation of strategies to import 
supplemental water supplies into the basin, including: 
• Substitution of alternative supplies for Basin groundwater (including in-lieu 

recharge). 
• Direct aquifer replenishment of pumping in exceedence of basin Natural Safe 

Yield. 
 Potential water sources for the above strategies include reclaimed water for irrigation 

of large turf areas and/or direct recharge, surplus Carmel River Water for aquifer 
replenishment during the winter months, and local desalination projects such as that 
proposed by Sand City and regional desalination project, such as that proposed by 
California American Water.    Supplemental supplies will be evaluated with regard to 
cost and environmental constraints to implementation.   Plan recommendations will 
include concrete steps for project implementation over specific time periods, 
including near-term and long-term actions. 

 
d.  Development of strategies for redistribution of pumping to avoid various adverse 

impacts within the basin. 
 

 
 
 
 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 20 

 
IV. 

Seawater Intrusion Contingency Program 
 

A.  Objective   

If seawater intrusion is detected in a coastal production or monitoring well, it is imperative 
that pumping stresses be reduced so that the seawater is not pulled further inland or otherwise 
spread into a larger area of the Basin where it may contaminate additional wells.  
Accordingly, the objective of the Seawater Intrusion Contingency Program is to set forth the 
actions that will be undertaken if seawater intrusion is detected in a coastal well to prevent 
the seawater from contaminating larger portions of the Basin.  The purpose of this section is 
describe how the presence and extent of seawater intrusion will be determined by the analysis 
of the existing and the future enhanced coastal seawater intrusion water quality monitoring 
program.  The seawater intrusion contingency planning process to address the detection and 
presence of seawater intrusion will then be discussed.   

B.  Seawater Intrusion Analysis  
 

In order to detect and determine the extent of seawater intrusion, the mechanism of seawater 
intrusion must first be defined and then described.  The analysis of the water quality 
monitoring data and mapping of the extent of seawater intrusion will follow.   

 
1.  Seawater Intrusion – Description of Problem and Process 

 
Intensification of water use on ground water resources can cause the depletion of 
groundwater storage and lower groundwater levels in a basin.  Declining groundwater 
levels to an elevation below mean sea level may eventually cause inflow of seawater into 
aquifers along coastal areas.  As seawater moves inland, ground water chloride values 
increase over time.  
 

      2.  Seawater Intrusion - Definition  
 
For the purposes of defining when actions described in Section C of the program will be 
taken, the seaside groundwater basin aquifers will be defined as seawater intruded when 
the chloride concentrations in a coastal monitor well reach approximately 100 mg/l and 
250 mg/l for the Paso Robles and Santa Margarita formations respectively.  For a coastal 
production well, the standard will be when chloride concentrations reach 250 mg/l, given 
that some production wells have multiple aquifer completions with water quality that 
reflects a blend from these sources.  These standards will be used until more 
comprehensive standards based on historical water quality data at individual monitor and 
production wells can be developed.  Each monitoring well and production well in the 
groundwater network will be evaluated on site-specific criteria.   In addition, the 
Watermaster will institute interim standards for notice of potential seawater intrusion so 
that appropriate preventative actions may be taken.  Interim notice for seawater intrusion 
will be defined as a 50 percent increase above ambient chloride concentrations for any 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 21 

specific monitoring well location.  Generally accepted laboratory protocols and 
hydrogeologic methods will be employed for the determinations of seawater intrusion. 
  

 
3.  Description of Water Quality Related to Seawater Intrusion 

 
 The California Safe Drinking Water Secondary Standard for chloride ranges from the 

recommended maximum for drinking water of 250 mg/L chloride and an upper limit of 
500mg/L chloride.  By the time chlorides reach the latter concentration, many times the 
wells are abandoned or destroyed due to unacceptable aesthetic qualities such as taste due 
to mineralization.  The standards mentioned above dictate that, for drinking water 
purposes, chloride concentrations will be the primary water quality indicator for the 
determination of seawater intrusion. Other complementary inorganic parameter 
concentrations will also provide supplemental data for water quality trend analysis and 
aquifer water quality characterization (calcium, magnesium, sodium, potassium, sulfate, 
and nitrate) called “fingerprinting”.  The analysis of these combined parameters will 
determine aquifer impacts by seawater intrusion. 

 
 Background chloride values may vary by aquifer depending on aquifer characteristics.  

For this reason, chloride values generated from the water quality monitoring program will 
be referenced to the 100mg/L and 250 mg/L chloride concentrations to determine aquifer 
impacts by seawater intrusion.  In the coastal Salinas Valley, the agricultural community 
recognizes chloride values under 100mg/L as excellent to good irrigation quality.  After 
determining if seawater intrusion is present, the observance of increasing chloride trends 
from the baseline up to 250mg/L chloride will be analyzed to determine the advancement 
of seawater intrusion.  It must be noted that seawater intrusion is a gradual process due to 
the chemical interactions between the geologic formations in the aquifers and seawater.  
It is critical that the Watermaster Board is kept informed whenever chloride levels reach 
levels in excess of the interim standard so that appropriate action can be taken.   

 
4.  Data Analysis Tools and Data Analysis  

 
 The water quality data analysis exercise requires certain tools.  These tools include 

different types of computer software to digitally identify the location of wells, to quality 
check data, and to generate graphs, diagrams, and chloride contour lines.  Before a 
thorough analysis of the water quality data can begin,  the following software will be 
required: 

• Geographic Positioning System (GPS) equipment to provide latitude/longitude 
location for study wells  

• Excel to graph chloride trends for each well 
• Water quality graphing software to represent water quality data in “stiff” and 

“trilinear” diagrams 
• ArcView GIS 3.3 to generate chloride contour lines 

 
 Once the software is obtained and personnel are trained, immediate evaluation of the 

existing monitoring data can begin.  Compilation of the data in a central database will be 
required along with data checking for correctness and GPS digital locations for all wells 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 22 

must be obtained.  If the exiting study wells have historical data, the first step is to graph 
the chloride values for each well to determine any increasing trends over time.  The next 
step is to determine the “fingerprint” or the water quality characteristics for each well 
with the use of stiff diagrams.  Stiff diagrams show the complete inorganic suite of water 
quality data concentrations represented on a graph.  This provides instant recognition the 
“fingerprint” of water being pumped from each of the aquifers.  Like aquifer wells will 
have similar water quality fingerprints.  The next water quality graphing step, prior to 
contouring the well chloride data, is to create a trilinear diagram for multiple wells.  The 
inorganic water quality concentrations for each well will be represented on one graph in 
comparison to the same constituent concentrations of seawater.  This graph enables the 
analyst to determine inorganic parameter concentration trends toward varying degrees of 
seawater intrusion.  Using generally accepted standards, it must be confirmed whether 
elevated chloride concentrations are an anomaly or are due to seawater intrusion. The last 
step in the water quality data analysis is to contour the chloride data for each of the 
coastal monitoring wells on a map to compare and contrast chloride values.  To contour, 
the following protocol will be followed utilizing ArcView GIS 3.3: 

 
• Create a .dbf file that includes facility codes, chloride values and sampling dates 

information 
• Import .dbf file into Arc-View 
• In Arc-View, open a new view 
• In the menu bar, under View choose the add Theme button and add the shape file 

with wells to be contoured 
• In the View window, “open the tables of active themes”, which will bring up the 

attributes table 
• Open both the .dbf file and the study wells shape file, join the tables 
• Choose create contours under Surface in the view window 

• Create contours, select Output Grid Extent option 
• Choose spline method to interpolate surface type field 
• Choose chloride for “Z” value field 
• Choose appropriate weight and number of points (hint: start with default 

values to see what the default contour looks like) 
• Classify quantiles using Legend Editor menu 

• Choose chloride value for value field.  Classify according to chloride 
concentration e.g. 100 mg/L, 250 mg/L, or 500 mg/L 

• Assign line type according to chloride concentrations 
 

 After the draft chloride contour map is generated, multiple technical review sessions must 
take place by all entities, MPWMD, Cal Am, and MCWRA, to evaluate the data 
representation.  This will enable the entities to determine if the data are correctly being 
represented on the map, and if so, lead to the implementation of an action program.  Well 
production amounts, seasonal precipitation, and water conservation efforts in each of the 
geographic areas will be useful in interpreting the chloride contour map.  Once this first 
step is completed to determine the baseline chloride contours, a more thorough evaluation 
will be accomplished once the data is generated from the new coastal dedicated 
monitoring wells. 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 23 

 
 Take note that there are other, less routinely used, data analysis tools available to further 

delineate seawater intrusion and its advancement.  Some tools, among others, include 
water quality stable isotope analysis and periodic well borehole geophysics.   

 
 The data analysis of seawater intrusion will be performed on an annual basis beginning 

January 2007 after the period of monitoring during heavy pumping is completed from 
May through November 2006.   
 
It is recognized that acquisition and development of the tools necessary for the seawater 
intrusion monitoring analysis described above will take time to fully implement by the 
Watermaster.  As an interim measure until this portion of the Program is completed and 
ready to be fully utilized, pertinent water quality data compilation and analysis will be 
prepared and presented to the Watermaster using existing methods that do not rely upon 
completion of all the steps as in the above-described protocol.  This interim measure will 
be accomplished and reported to the Watermaster beginning with the first Board meeting 
immediately after the data from the MPWMD's budgeted October 2006 coastal monitor 
well groundwater quality sampling results are available, so that potential seawater 
intrusion can be detected and addressed at the earliest possible date. 

 

Water Quality Data Analysis Tools and Data Analysis Timeline 

          
                 Estimated           Estimated 
          Task                         Start Date      Completion Date 
 
1.  Interim Data Analysis 
     (Water Quality Data Compilation and Analysis)      August 2006  -    December 2006 
 
2.  Obtain software and train personnel August 2006 -  December 2006                         
 
3.  Compile and Check Existing Data Sources September 2006- December 2006 
 
4.  Development of Sea Water Intrusion Assessment Tools    November 2006 – January 2007 
      Purchase of GIS tool will provide the following:  

• Graph chloride values for each well  
• Determine "fingerprint" or water 

quality characteristics for each well 
with the use of stiff diagrams 

• Create a trilinear diagram for 
multiple wells 

Purchase of Fox database tool will     
provide the following: 

• Confirm whether elevated chloride 
concentrations are an anomaly or are 



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 24 

due to seawater intrusion 
Purchase of Arcview tool will provide 

the following: 
• Map chloride data contours for each 

of the coastal monitoring wells to 
compare and contrast chloride values  

 
5.  Evaluate data representation and establish  
     baseline chloride levels    November 2006- February 2007 
 
6.  Evaluate baseline chloride contours    December 2006 - March 2007 
 
C.  Actions to be Taken Subsequent to Detection of Seawater Within in a Coastal Well  

The following actions are to be taken in accordance with Exhibit A of the Decision (Case No. 
M66343) 

1. If seawater intrusion is detected in a coastal production or monitoring well 
(“Contaminated Well”), the Contaminated Well will discontinue pumping and all 
other wells that produce groundwater from the intruded aquifer that are within one-
half mile of the affected monitoring well (“Threatened Wells”) will immediately 
reduce their monthly production to the equivalent of one-half of their average 
monthly production1 within the previous five years upon notification from 
Watermaster of the detection of seawater intrusion within the Contaminated Well.   

2.  Watermaster shall increase monitoring of groundwater levels within the one-half mile 
radius of the Contaminated Well to determine if the requisite pumping reductions 
sufficiently affect groundwater gradients to prevent the further spread of seawater 
intrusion toward the Threatened Wells.  This increased monitoring effort will include 
installing at least one new monitoring well as a sentinel well between the 
Contaminated Well and the nearest down-gradient active Threatened Well.   

3.  After six months of reduced pumping of the Threatened Wells, the threat of further 
seawater intrusion will be re-evaluated.  If the requisite pumping reductions have 
failed to sufficiently affect groundwater gradients to prevent the further spread of 
seawater intrusion toward the Threatened Wells, those wells will further reduce their 
monthly production to the equivalent of one-third of their average monthly 
production within the previous five years upon notification by Watermaster that such 
further reductions are required.   

4.  After another six months of monitoring, the direction of groundwater gradients will 
again be evaluated.  If there continues to be a groundwater gradient that would pull 
the detected seawater towards the Threatened Wells, then the Threatened Wells shall 
discontinue pumping, unless in Watermaster’s determination, doing so would create a 
public health and/or safety risk.    

                                                           
   



Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Page 25 

5.  If, after the initial discovery of the initial seawater intrusion, seawater is encountered 
in an additional monitoring or production well, pumping reductions will be required 
for nearby threatened production wells (i.e., production wells within one half mile of 
the recently contaminated well) in the same manner as set forth above for first 
Contaminated Well. 

If the implementation of the procedures set forth above cause a production well to reduce 
its pumping or to cease pumping altogether, all reasonable efforts shall be undertaken by 
the Watermaster and all other Parties that Produce Groundwater from the Basin to insure 
that the lost production capacity and associated water supply for that well owner/operator 
will be replaced by redistributing pumping, or provision of replacement water from other 
sources. 

 

D.  Efforts to Redistribute or Replace Water Lost Because of Seawater Intrusion 
Contingency Plan 

The Monterey Peninsula has faced the constant specter of water shortage for decades.  The 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District has developed an Expanded Conservation 
and Standby Rationing Plan (included in the program as Appendix 2) that responds to a 
number of water supply shortage scenarios.  Saltwater intrusion and subsequent 
management of an event will require planning and coordination of all Seaside Basin users 

In the event that supplies cannot immediately be replaced with supplies from other Seaside 
Basin wells or from outside sources, the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
would, in conjunction with California American Water, implement the appropriate actions 
called for in the Expanded Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan (MPWMD 
Regulation XV, Rules 160 – 175) for the Cal Am service area.  The plan will be amended 
by January 2007 as needed to use detected seawater intrusion episodes as a trigger for the 
implementation of the plan to also include the Seaside Water Main System. 
 
A contingency planning program will enable quick action to take place to address any 
seawater intrusion scenario that may arise from the annual analysis of the seawater 
intrusion water quality.   

 

 

 





 
 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Exhibit A of the Decision in the Superior Court of the State of California in and for the  
County of Monterey, Case No. M66343 









 
 

Appendix 2 
 
 

Expanded Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan, 
by the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 

 



RegXV-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

REGULATION XV. EXPANDED WATER CONSERVATION AND STANDBY RATIONING 
PLAN



160-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 160 - GENERAL PROVISIONS  

A. All water users within the Monterey Peninsula Water Management  District shall 
be subject to the District’s  water waste and  non-essential water use prohibitions.

B. Prohibitions against water waste and non-essential water use shall be enforced by 
the District and its designated agents in accordance with Rule 171 (Water Waste 
Fees).

C.  Stage 1 Water Conservation shall be implemented upon the effective date of this 
regulation.

D. Stage 1 Water Conservation parallels   Cal-Am’s Phase IV Mandatory Water 
Conservation program that was designed to meet the Carmel Valley water 
production limits set by the SWRCB and approved by the Public Utilities 
Commission.  Stages 1 through 3 Water Conservation is intended to achieve 
the Carmel Valley water production limits set by the State  Board.   Stage 4 
Water Rationing through Stage 7 Water Rationing are intended to respond to 
limitations in supply caused by inadequate system infl ow and storage.

E. Stage 1 Water Conservation through Stage 3 Water Conservation shall apply to 
water users of the   Cal-Am  water distribution system where that system derives 
its  source of supply from the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System 
( MPWRS) for as long as   Cal-Am is subject to water production goals and 
limitations enforced by the SWRCB.

F. Stage 4 Water Rationing through Stage 7 Water Rationing  may apply to all water 
distribution system users and water users within the Monterey Peninsula Water 
Resources System as a response to limited water supply.  These stages shall also 
serve as responses to emergency situations where immediate reductions in water 
use are necessary to ensure  public health, safety or welfare.  This regulation 
authorizes the Board of Directors to, from time to time, determine by Resolution 
that any water distribution system or set of water users within the Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District shall be subject to Stages 4 Water 
Rationing through Stage 7 Water Rationing as provided in this ordinance.

G. As to water derived from the MPWRS,   Cal-Am shall maintain unaccounted 
for water use in its MPWRS distribution system at or below seven (7) percent.  
Average losses of more than seven (7) percent during the most recent twelve-
month period shall be considered water waste.  This limitation shall not affect 
any   Cal-Am system east of, and including, the Ryan Ranch subunit.

H.   Cal-Am shall amend its  Urban Water Management Plan to conform to the 
policies and procedures described in this ordinance.  A copy of the plan and 
amendment shall be fi led with the District within 180 days of the effective 
date of this ordinance. The plan shall comply with the California Water Code, 
Division 6, Part 2.6.



160-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

  Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



161-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

by the SWRCB.  Assuming a maximum annual production of 4,000 acre-feet 
from the Seaside Coastal Basin, this equates to a   Cal-Am system production limit 
of 15,285 acre-feet. Each  water  user deriving water from the   Cal-Am system that 
derives its  source of supply from the  MPWRS shall comply with District  water 
waste and  non-essential water use prohibitions and shall participate to the extent 
possible in voluntarily reducing water use.

B. All water users with the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District shall 
comply with water waste and non-essential water use prohibitions.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/29/99)

RULE 161 - STAGE 1 WATER CONSERVATION  

A.  Stage 1 Water Conservation is defi ned as the fi rst stage in the  District’s Expanded 
Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan that takes action to maintain 
  Cal-Am water derived from the MPWRS below regulatory constraints by 
increasing conservation activities and preparing for further stages of conservation 
and rationing.  During Stage 1 Water Conservation,   Cal-Am shall have the goal 
of maintaining its annual (October 1 through September 30) water production 
from the Carmel Valley below 11,285 acre-feet.  This quantity may be modifi ed 



162-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 162 - STAGE 2 WATER CONSERVATION

A.  Stage 2 Water Conservation is defi ned as the second stage in the  District’s 
Expanded Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan that takes action 
to maintain   Cal-Am water use from the  MPWRS below regulatory constraints 
by requiring implementation of Landscape Water Budgets for large irrigators of 
three acres or more, large residential water users and water users with dedicated 
landscape water meters. 

B. Stage  2  Water  Conservation  shall  be  enforced  when    Cal-Am  production 
from the MPWRS has exceeded the year-to-date at month-end target as displayed 
in Table 1.

The monthly distribution of water production shown in Table 1 between sources 
in the Carmel River Basin and in the coastal subareas of the Seaside Groundwater 
Basin shall be approved by the Board of Directors as part of the Quarterly Water 
Supply Strategy and Budget process.  The Board shall hold public hearings to 
consider the water supply budgets for Cal-Am’s main system during the Board’s 
regular meetings in September, December, March, and June, at which time the 
Board may modify Table 1 by Resolution.

Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



162-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Table 1
REGULATORY WATER PRODUCTION TARGETS

FOR CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER MAIN SYSTEM FROM SOURCES
WITHIN THE MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER RESOURCES SYSTEM

Month Monthly Target
Year-to-Date 

At Month-End Target

October 1,379 1,379

November 1,113 2,492

December 984 3,476

January 958 4,434

February 894 5,328

March 1,047 6,375

April 1,209 7,584

May 1,405 8,989

June 1,527 10,516

July 1,628 12,144

August 1,649 13,793

September 1,492 15,285

TOTAL 15,285



162-3
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

C. Requirements imposed by implementation of the Expanded Water Conservation 
and Standby Rationing Plan through  Stage 1 Water Conservation shall remain in 
force.  Requirements  may be modifi ed or superseded by actions taken in future 
stages of the Expanded Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan.

D. Implementation of Landscape Water Budgets:  All water users required to obtain 
a  Landscape Water Budget under District Rule 172 are required to manage 
outdoor irrigation within the Landscape Water Budget assigned to the property.

E. Water use in excess of the established Landscape Water Budget shall be 
considered Water Waste and shall be subject to District Rule 171. 

F. Sunset of  Stage 2 Water Conservation:   Without further action of the  Board of 
Directors, the provisions of Stage 2 Water Conservation shall be rescinded and 
revert to Stage 1 Water Conservation upon compliance with the year-to-date at 
month-end production goal for two consecutive months in the subsequent  water 
year.

G. Notice:  Cal-Am shall provide an annual reminder notice to MPWRS users with  
 Landscape Water Budgets to report modifi cations in landscaping which could  
 alter an existing budget.

H. Monthly Consumption Reports:  During any Stage 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, or 7, Cal-Am  
 shall provide the District with monthly consumption reports in a format   
 approved by the District.  Reports shall be provided within fi fteen (15) days of  
 the close of the preceding month.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/05)



163-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 163 - STAGE 3 WATER CONSERVATION 

A. Stage 3 Water Conservation is defi ned as the third stage in the  District’s 
Expanded Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan that takes action 
to maintain   Cal-Am water use in the  MPWRS below regulatory constraints.  
It is triggered when the year-to-date at month-end production target for Cal-
Am from the MPWRS is exceeded twice by the average of Cal-Am’s year-
to-date production from the MPWRS for each month during the October 
through March period or exceeded once by the average of Cal-Am’s year-to-
date production from the MPWRS for each month during the April through 
September period.  It provides a procedure to enable emergency temporary 
increases in the upper block volume rates and requires increased action by Cal-
Am to reduce unaccounted-for water and monthly reporting of actions taken.  
Stage 3 Water Conservation may also be triggered upon Resolution of the Board 
of Directors when there is a need for an immediate water use reduction in 
response to an unexpected water production increase.    

Upon implementation of Stage 3 Water Conservation,   Cal-Am shall immediately 
submit a plan to the General Manager to reduce unaccounted for water uses to 
seven (7) percent or less measurered by the most recent twelve-month rolling 
average and shall immediately act on such plan.  Cal-Am shall provide a progress 
report to the Board of Directors monthly until Stage 3 is sunset.  

B. Regulatory Trigger:  Stage 3 Water Conservation shall be enforced when   any 
of the following criteria has been met: 1) the average of Cal-Am’s year-to-date 
production from the MPWRS for each month has exceeded the year-to-date 
at month-end production target for Cal-Am from the MPWRS as displayed in 
Table 1 for a second time during the period from October 1 through March 31 
in any  water year, or 2) the average of Cal-Am’s year-to-date production from the 
MPWRS for each month has exceeded the year-to-date at month-end production 
target for Cal-Am from the MPWRS as displayed in Table 1 once during the 
period from April 1 through September 30 in any water year, or 3) a Resolution 
has been adopted by the Board in accord with Section C below. 

C. Emergency Trigger:  Stage 3 Water Conservation shall be implemented upon 
Resolution of the Board of Directors when there is need for an immediate water 
use reduction requirement in response to an unexpected water production 
increase.

D. Sunset of Stage 3 Water Conservation:  Without further action by the  Board 
of Directors, the provisions of Stage 3 Water Conservation shall be rescinded 
upon compliance with the year-to-date at month-end production goal for two 
consecutive months in the subsequent water year. Water users of   Cal-Am when 
that water system derives water from the MPWRS shall revert to  Stage 1 Water 
Conservation.  

 



163-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

 Regulatory compliance during a period of  Stage 4 Water Rationing shall not 
cause a sunset of this provision. 

E. Notice:    Cal-Am shall provide notice of mandatory water conservation with each 
bill prepared for water users of the   Cal-Am system

F. Cal-Am Emergency Use Rates  :  Cal-Am shall implement the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC) approved emergency rate schedule to respond to 
Stage 3 water reduction requirements.    Cal-Am shall fi le an Advice Letter with 
the CPUC to implement Emergency Use Rates, however, only after it has fi rst 
met and conferred with the District at least fi ve days in advance of that fi ling.  
The General Manager may waive this time period for good cause.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



164-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 164 - STAGE 4 WATER RATIONING

A.  Stage 4 Water Rationing is defi ned as the fourth stage in the  District’s Expanded 
Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan that responds to a drought 
situation or emergency water supply shortage with a 15 percent reduction 
goal from system production limits for non-  Cal-Am water users.  Fifteen 
percent reductions in the   Cal-Am system are achieved through Stage 3 Water 
Conservation.

B. Trigger.

1. Water Supply Limitation Trigger.  Stage 4 Water Rationing shall apply 
to all water users whose  source of supply is derived from the  MPWRS.  
Stage 4 Water Rationing shall become effective on June 1 or such earlier 
date as  may be set by the  Board following the District’s May Board 
meeting if total usable storage in the MPWRS on May 1 is less than 
27,807 acre-feet and greater than 21,802 acre-feet.  If total usable storage 
is equal to or greater than 27,807 acre-feet on May 1, no water rationing 
shall be imposed.

2. Emergency Trigger.  Stage 4 Water Rationing shall be implemented upon 
Resolution of the Board of Directors when there is need for an immediate 
water use reduction requirement in response to an unexpected water 
supply shortage.

C. Requirements previously imposed by implementation of the Expanded Water 
Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan shall remain in force.  Requirements 
may be modifi ed or superseded by actions taken in this or future stages of the 
Expanded Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan.

D. The provisions of Stage 3 Water Conservation shall be implemented for all water 
users of the   Cal-Am  water distribution system, unless specifi cally exempt from 
Stage 4 Water Rationing by action of the Board of Directors.

E. Sunset of Stage 4 Water Rationing.  

1. Water Supply Availability.  Stage 4 Water Rationing shall  continue to have 
force and effect until rescinded by Resolution of the Board of Directors 
upon a determination that the total usable storage in the MPWRS is 
greater than 27,807 acre-feet.  This determination will normally be made 
at the Board’s May meeting.  However, a determination to rescind Stage 
4 Water Rationing as early as the following January Board meeting can be 
made if the total usable storage in the MPWRS is equal to or greater than 
27,807 acre-feet on January 1.

2. In the event total usable storage is greater than 27,807 acre-feet, the 
 General Manager shall review   Cal-Am’s year-to-date production.  Upon 
compliance with the monthly year-to-date goals specifi ed in Table 1 of 



164-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

Rule 162 and, unless otherwise specifi ed in the Resolution rescinding 
 Stage 4 Water Rationing, water users shall revert to  Stage 1 Water 
Conservation.  If   Cal-Am’s year-to-date production exceeds the year-to-
date goal specifi ed in Table 1 of Rule 162,   Cal-Am water users shall revert 
to  Stage 2 Water Conservation. 

3. Emergency.  Upon correction of a water supply limitation caused by an 
emergency, Stage 4 Water Rationing shall sunset without action by the 
 Board.

F. Notice.  

1. Upon direction of the  General Manager, all  water distribution system 
operators affected by Stage 4 Water Rationing shall notify water users 
of the system that reductions in water use are necessary and that stricter 
water rationing  may be imminent.  Water distribution system operators 
shall ensure that notices provided or required by the  District shall be 
distributed to the system water users.  

2. As appropriate,   Cal-Am shall notify its water users that  excessive use rates 
will be imposed upon the effective date of Stage 4 Water Rationing.

3. The District shall contact all water users of private wells not supplying 
water to a distribution system within the  MPWRS.  Contact shall be 
via fi rst class mail and shall explain the restrictions placed on the use of 
private wells during Stage 4 Water Rationing and shall provide and/or 
request additional information from the private  well  owner as deemed 
necessary for the effi cient operation of the program.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



165-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 165 - STAGE 5 WATER RATIONING 

A.  Stage 5 Water Rationing is defi ned as the fi fth stage in the  District’s Expanded 
Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan that responds to a drought 
situation or emergency water supply shortage with a 20 percent reduction goal 
from the system production limit.  Reductions are achieved by water use cutbacks 
by   user category and by per-capita water rations and a moratorium on water 
permits that intensify water use. 

B. Implementation.  

1. Water Supply Limitation Trigger.  Stage 5 Water Rationing shall apply 
to all water users whose  source of supply is derived from the  MPWRS.  
Stage 5 Water Rationing shall become effective on June 1 or such earlier 
date as  may be set by the  Board following the District’s May Board 
meeting if total usable storage in  the MPWRS on May 1 is less than 
21,802 acre-feet and greater than 15,615 acre-feet.  If total usable storage 
is equal to or greater than 27,807 acre-feet on May 1, no water rationing 
shall be imposed.

The  General Manager may delay implementation of Stage 5 Water
Rationing to ensure adequate operation of the program.  Delays
authorized by the General Manager shall not exceed 90 days.

2. Emergency.  Implementation shall also occur following urgency action 
by Resolution of the Board of Directors declaring that an emergency 
situation exists and immediate 20 percent reductions in water use from 
a distribution system’s production limit are necessary to ensure  public 
health, safety or welfare.

C. Sunset of Stage 5 Water Rationing.  

1. Water Supply Availability.  Stage 5 Water Rationing shall  continue to have 
force and effect until rescinded by Resolution of the Board of Directors 
upon a determination that the total usable storage in the MPWRS is 
greater than 21,802 acre-feet.  This determination will normally be made 
at the Board’s May meeting.  However, a determination to rescind Stage 
5 Water Rationing as early as the following January Board meeting can be 
made if the total usable storage in the MPWRS is equal to or greater than 
27,807 acre-feet on January 1.  

2. In the event total usable storage is greater than 27,807 acre-feet, the 
General Manager shall review   Cal-Am’s year-to-date production.  Upon 
compliance with the monthly year-to-date goals specifi ed in Table 1 of 
Rule 162 and, unless otherwise specifi ed in the Resolution rescinding 
Stage 5 Water Rationing, water users shall revert to  Stage 1 Water 
Conservation.  If   Cal-Am’s year-to-date production exceeds the year-to-
date goal specifi ed in Table 1 of Rule 162,   Cal-Am water users shall revert 



165-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

to  Stage 2 Water Conservation. 

If   Cal-Am production exceeds the year-to-date at month’s end production
goal as shown in Rule 162, Table 1,   Cal-Am water users shall revert to
Stage 2 Water Conservation.

D. Affected Water Users.   Stage 5 Water Rationing shall apply to all water users 
within the  MPWRS.  As necessary to ensure adequate water supplies, the  Board 
of Directors  may act within its discretion to authorize activation of Stage 5 Water 
Rationing within one or more water distribution systems in the  District. 

E. Requirements imposed by implementation of the Expanded Water Conservation 
and Standby Rationing Plan through Stage 4 Water Conservation shall remain in 
force.  Requirements may be modifi ed or superseded by actions taken in this or 
future stages of the Expanded Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan.

F. Moratorium.  On October 1 following implementation of Stage 5 Water 
Rationing, the District shall  suspend the issuance of water permits associated 
with intensifi cation in use.  This provision shall not suspend the issuance of water 
permits that utilize  public or private Water Use Credits or where issuance of a 
 permit is required by prior agreement of the  District.

G. Reduction Goal.  Stage 5 Water Rationing achieves water use reductions of 20 
percent of the   Cal-Am and non-  Cal-Am system production limits in each   user 
category as follows:   Residential single-family and multi-family, commercial/
industrial, public authority,  golf course, “other,” non-revenue metered uses, and 
 reclaimed water users.

H. Notice.

1.   Cal-Am shall provide written notice of mandatory water rationing to 
every residence and to every non-residential business or  water user within 
the   Cal-Am system via fi rst-class mail at least thirty (30) days before the 
fi rst day of rationing.  Further,   Cal-Am shall send monthly reminders 
of water rationing in the water bill along with information showing 
the water ration and the quantity of the water ration consumed by the 
 responsible party.  Finally,   Cal-Am shall provide each responsible party 
with a survey form upon request.

2. All water distribution system operators affected by Stage 5 Water 
Rationing shall provide written notice of mandatory water rationing to 
every residence and to every non-residential business or water user within 
the water distribution system via fi rst-class mail at least thirty (30) days 
before the fi rst day of rationing.  Further, the distribution system  operator 
shall send monthly reminders of water rationing in the water bill along 
with information showing the water ration and the quantity of the water 
ration consumed by the responsible party.  Finally, the   water distribution 
system  operator shall provide each  responsible party with a survey form 



165-3
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

at least once each calendar year.   Water distribution system operators 
shall ensure that notices provided or required by the District shall be 
distributed to the system water users.

3. The District shall contact all water users of private wells not supplying 
water to a distribution system within the  MPWRS at least thirty (30) 
days before the fi rst day of  Stage 5 Water Rationing.  Contact shall be 
via fi rst class mail and shall explain the restrictions placed on the use of 
private wells during Stage 5 Water Rationing and shall provide and/or 
request additional information from the private well  owner as deemed 
necessary for the effi cient operation of the program.

I. Rations by Category.  Water rations shall be determined by   user category.  Each 
 water user within the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System shall be 
classifi ed in one of the following groups:   Residential Single-Family and Multi-
Family, Commercial/Industrial, Public Authority, Golf Course, “other,” Non-
Revenue Metered Use, and  Reclaimed Water Users.

J. Reduced Annual   Cal-Am Annual Production During Stage 5 Water Rationing.  
The   Cal-Am annual production limit shall be reduced by 20 percent during Stage 
5 Water Rationing.  The resulting production limit shall be further reduced by 
a  water rationing contingency determined by the  Board.  Seven (7) percent of 
the remainder shall be the maximum   Cal-Am unaccounted for water use ration.  
The remaining water shall be the   Cal-Am annual production limit for all user 
categories.

K. Non-  Cal-Am Annual Production Limits During Stage 5 Water Rationing.  
Available production for other water distribution systems subject to Stage 5 
Water Rationing shall be determined using the same methodology as for   Cal-Am 
without including a deduction for unaccounted for water uses.  The non-  Cal-Am 
annual production limit for the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System 
shall be used as the maximum production limit. 

L. Establishing the Rations.  Rations for each user category shall be determined 
by the  General Manager by dividing the reduced available production by the 
percentage of use.  The percentage of use for each user group shall be determined 
by the most recent  unrationed reporting year (July 1 through June 30) data 
provided by   Cal-Am for water users of that portion of   Cal-Am that derives water 
from the MPWRS, and by data provided by the  District from its annual  well 
reporting program for non-  Cal-Am distribution systems.

1. Residential Water Users.  Each residential water user either served 
by a water meter reported as “single-family residential” by the  water 
distribution system or served by a private well shall have an equal portion 
of the water available to the single-family residential category based upon 
the number of residents reported on the survey form.



165-4
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

2. Multi-Family  Residential Water Users.  Each multi-family residential 
water user either served by a water meter reported as “multi-family 
residential” by the water distribution system or served by a private  well 
shall have an equal portion of the water available to the multi-family 
residential category based upon the number of residents reported on the 
survey form with the following exception:

a. Multi-family residential sites with common laundry facilities on 
a separate water meter shall receive a one-unit water ration for 
each  dwelling unit that has access to the facility.  Each dwelling 
unit located on the multi-family residential  site that has access to 
the common laundry facility shall have the dwelling unit ration 
reduced by one unit of water.

3. Commercial/Industrial Water Users.  Each commercial/industrial 
water  user either served by a water meter reported as “commercial” or 
“industrial” by the  water distribution system shall have a base ration 
determined by applying the current commercial water use factors.

a. Mixed Use Water Users.  Mixed-use water users shall be classifi ed 
as commercial uses for the purposes of this program.

4. Public Authority.  Public Authority Uses shall be rationed by  jurisdiction.  
Each Public Authority  water user  may combine multiple accounts or 
connections when the accounts are located within one jurisdiction. 

5. Golf Courses.  Golf Courses supplied water exclusively by the   Cal-Am 
or non-  Cal-Am water distribution systems or wells may be rationed 
individually or, upon request to the  General Manager, as a group.

6. Other.  Water users utilizing portable water meters or hydrant meters 
shall be required to employ  Best Management Practices.    Cal-Am shall be 
required to report monthly to the  District the location and  responsible 
party for all portable water meters and the amount of use from those 
meters.  As deemed necessary to achieve the imposed reduction in use, 
the District may condition use of temporary connections.

7. Non-Revenue Metered Users.  Non-Revenue Metered Uses shall be 
rationed as a group with the following exception:

a. Irrigation required by the Mitigation Program adopted when the 
Water   Allocation Program Environmental Impact Report was 
adopted in 1990, and as required by SWRCB Order No. WR 95-
10, shall not be subject to reductions in use.  Required irrigation 
of the  riparian corridor shall be identifi ed and reported separately 
from other non-revenue metered uses.



165-5
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

8. Non-  Cal-Am Wells.  Regulations for rationing non-  Cal-Am wells located 
within the  MPWRS that are not supplying water to a distribution system 
shall be considered by the  Board prior to implementation of  Stage 5 
Water Rationing.

9.  Recycled Water Users.  Recycled Water Irrigation Areas receiving water 
from the  CAWD/PBCSD Wastewater Reclamation Project shall be 
subject to Stages 5 Water Rationing and higher for potable water used 
during an interruption or emergency, in accordance with contractual 
agreements between the District and the respective owners of the 
Recycled Water Irrigation Areas.  

 a. Before Project Expansion Is Completed.  Under the agreements  
 operative before the Project Expansion is Completed (as the     
 capitalized terms are defi ned in Rule 23.5), the owners of the   
 Recycled Water Irrigation Areas shall have the respective irrigation  
 requirements thereof satisfi ed to the same degree as any non-

  Project golf course or open space which derive their source  
  of supply from the Cal-Am system.  The irrigation requirements  

 of the Recycled Water Irrigation Areas will be determined based  
 on the most-recent non-rationed four-year average irrigation   
 water demand, including both Recycled Water and potable

  water, for each Recycled Water Irrigation Areas.  The use of 
  Recycled Water, when available in suffi cient quantities to satisfy  

 the irrigation requirements of the Recycled Water Irrigation   
 Areas, shall not be restricted by this requirement.

Each Recycled Water Irrigation Area shall be entitled to receive 
the average irrigation requirement determined above, reduced by 
the percentage reduction required by the current stage of ration-
ing.  If the quantity of Recycled Water that is available is less than 
the quantity of water that the Recycled Water Irrigation Area is 
entitled to, potable water shall be provided to make up the differ-
ence and satisfy the irrigation requirements of the Recycled Water 
Irrigation Area to the same degree that the irrigation requirements 
of non- Project golf course and open space users are being satis-
fi ed.   

The District shall ensure that the water provided during water 
rationing is of adequate quality.  If the quality does not satisfy the 
contractual agreement operative before the Project Expansion is 
deemed Completed (as the capitalized terms are defi ned in Rule 
23.5), potable water shall be provided in suffi cient quantities to 
improve the quality of the reclaimed water.



165-6
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

     This Subsection L.9.a shall cease to be operative once the Project 
     Expansion is deemed to be Completed (as the capitalized terms  
     are defi ned in Rule 23.5), and shall thereafter be of no force or  
     effect.

    b. When Project Expansion Is Completed.  Under the agreements  
     operative once the Project Expansion is deemed Completed   
     (as the capitalized terms are defi ned in Rule 23.5), the owners  
     of the Recycled Water Irrigation Areas shall have the 

respective irrigation requirements thereof satisfi ed to the same  
degree as any non-Project golf course or open space which   
derives its source of supply from the Cal-Am system.  The ir- 
rigation requirements of the Recycled Water Irrigation Areas will 
be determined based on the most-recent non-rationed four-year 
average irrigation water demand, including both Recycled Water 
and potable water, for each respective Recycled Water Irrigation 
Area.  

Each Recycled Water Irrigation Area shall be entitled to receive 
the average irrigation requirement determined above, reduced by 
the percentage reduction required by the current stage of ration-
ing.  If the quantity of Recycled Water that is available is less than 
the quantity of water that the Recycled Water Irrigation Area is 
entitled to, potable water shall be provided to make up the differ-
ence and satisfy the irrigation requirements of the Recycled Water 
Irrigation Areas to the same degree that the irrigation require-
ments of non-Project golf course and open space users are being 
satisfi ed.   

The preceding sentence shall not apply to the extent that the ir-
rigation requirements of any Recycled Water Irrigation Area are 
met with water legally available to Buyer from any source other 
than the Carmel River System or the Seaside Groundwater Basin, 
including percolating ground water underlying Buyer’s Property, 
to make up any such difference.

When Recycled Water (as defi ned in Rule 23.5) is available in suf-
fi cient quantities to satisfy the irrigation requirements of the Re-
cycled Water Irrigation Areas, such irrigation shall not be subject 
to Stages 5 Water Rationing and higher, and neither potable water 
nor any water described in the preceding sentence (whether or 
not it is potable) shall be used for irrigation of the Recycled Water 
Irrigation Areas except to the extent allowed in the circumstances 
described in the next two sentences.

 
 



165-7
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

If there is an Interruption in Recycled Water deliveries to any Re-
cycled Water Irrigation Area(as the capitalized terms are defi ned 
in Rule 23.5), the temporary use of potable water for irrigating
 each such Recycled Water Irrigation Area is authorized in the 
manner described in Rule 23.5, Subsection F. 

If MPWMD has adopted an ordinance in response to any emer-
gency caused by drought, or other threatened or existing water 
shortage pursuant to section 332 of the Monterey Peninsula Wa-
ter Management Law, said ordinance shall prevail over contrary 
provisions of this Rule.  Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, 
potable water shall be made available for irrigating tees and greens 
of the Recycled Water Irrigation Areas in suffi cient quantities to 
maintain them in good health and condition during an Interrup-
tion, without any limitation on the duration.  

The District shall have no obligation to furnish potable water for 
irrigation of the Recycled Water Irrigation Areas except in the 
circumstances set forth above in this Subsection L.9.b. 

If (1) an emergency or major disaster is declared by the President 
of the United States, or (2) a “state of war emergency,” “state 
of emergency,” or “local emergency,” as those terms are respec-
tively defi ned in Government Code section 8558, has been duly 
proclaimed pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act, 
with respect to all or any portion of the territory of MPWMD, 
the provisions of this Subsection L.9.b shall yield as necessary to 
respond to the conditions giving rise to the declaration or procla-
mation.

This Subsection L.9.b shall be of no force or effect until the Proj-
ect Expansion is deemed Completed (as the capitalized terms are 
defi ned in Rule 23.5), and shall thereafter be operative and of full 
force and effect.

Added by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



166-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 166 - STAGE 6 WATER RATIONING

A.  Stage 6 Water Rationing is defi ned as the sixth stage in the  District’s Expanded 
Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan that responds to a drought 
situation or emergency water supply shortage with a 35 percent reduction goal 
from system production limits.  Reductions are achieved by water use cutbacks by 
  user category and by per-capita water rations and a moratorium on water permits 
that utilize water credits.

B. Implementation.  

1. Water Supply Limitation Trigger.  Stage 6 Water Rationing shall apply 
to all water users whose  source of supply is derived from the  MPWRS.  
Stage 6 Water Rationing shall become effective on June 1 or such earlier 
date as  may be set by the  Board following the District’s May Board 
meeting if total usable storage in the MPWRS on May 1 is less than 
15,615 acre-feet and greater than 9,610 acre-feet.  If total usable storage 
is equal to or greater than 27,807 acre-feet on May 1, no water rationing 
shall be imposed.

2. Implementation shall also occur following urgency action by Resolution 
of the Board of Directors declaring that an emergency situation exists and 
immediate 35 percent reductions in water use from a distribution systems 
production limit are necessary to ensure  public health, safety or welfare.

C. Sunset of Stage 6 Water Rationing. 

1. Water Supply Availability.  Stage 6 Water Rationing shall  continue to have 
force and effect until rescinded by Resolution of the Board of Directors 
upon a determination that the total usable storage in the MPWRS is 
greater than 15,615 acre-feet.  This determination will normally be made 
at the Board’s May meeting.  However, a determination to rescind Stage 
6 Water Rationing as early as the following January Board meeting can be 
made if the total usable storage in the MPWRS is equal to or greater than 
27,807 acre-feet on January 1.

2. In the event total usable storage is greater than 27,807 acre-feet, the 
 General Manager shall review   Cal-Am’s year-to-date production.  Upon 
compliance with the monthly year-to-date goals specifi ed in Table 1 of 
Rule 162 and, unless otherwise specifi ed in the Resolution rescinding 
Stage 6 Water Rationing, water users shall revert to  Stage 1 Water 
Conservation.  If   Cal-Am’s year-to-date production exceeds the year-to-
date goal specifi ed in Table 1 of Rule 162,   Cal-Am water users shall revert 
to  Stage 2 Water Conservation. 

D. Affected Water Users.  Stage 6 Water Rationing shall apply to all water users 
within the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System.  As necessary to ensure 



166-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

adequate water supplies, the  Board of Directors  may act within its discretion 
to authorize activation of  Stage 6 Water Rationing within one or more water 
distribution systems in the  District. 

E. Requirements imposed by implementation of the Expanded Water Conservation 
and Standby Rationing Plan through  Stage 5 Water Rationing shall remain in 
force.  Requirements may be modifi ed or superseded by actions taken in this or 
future stages of the Expanded Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan.

F. Moratorium.  On October 1 following implementation of Stage 6 Water 
Rationing, the District shall  suspend the issuance of water permits that utilize a 
 public or private  Water Use Credit.

G. Reduction Goal.  Stage 6 Water Rationing achieves water use reductions of 35 
percent of the   Cal-Am and non-  Cal-Am system production limits in each   user 
category as follows:   Residential single-family and multi-family, commercial/
industrial, public authority,  golf course, “other,” non-revenue metered uses, and 
reclaimed water users.

H. Notice

1.   Cal-Am shall provide written notice of mandatory water rationing to 
every residence and to every non-residential business or water user within 
the   Cal-Am system via fi rst-class mail at least thirty (30) days before the 
fi rst day of rationing.  Further,   Cal-Am shall send monthly reminders 
of water rationing in the water bill along with information showing 
the water ration and the quantity of the water ration consumed by the 
 responsible party.  Finally,   Cal-Am shall provide each responsible party 
with a survey form upon request.

2. All  water distribution system operators affected by Stage 6 Water 
Rationing shall provide written notice of mandatory water rationing to 
every residence and to every non-residential business or  water user within 
the water distribution system via fi rst-class mail at least thirty (30) days 
before the fi rst day of rationing.  Further, the distribution system  operator 
shall send monthly reminders of water rationing in the water bill along 
with information showing the water ration and the quantity of the water 
ration consumed by the responsible party.  Finally, the  water distribution 
system operator shall provide each responsible party with a survey form 
at least once each calendar year.   Water distribution system operators 
shall ensure that notices provided or required by the District shall be 
distributed to the system water users.

3. The District shall contact all water users of private wells not supplying 
water to a distribution system within the  MPWRS at least thirty (30) 
days before the fi rst day of Stage 6 Water Rationing.  Contact shall be 
via fi rst class mail and shall explain the restrictions placed on the use of 



166-3
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

private wells during  Stage 6 Water Rationing and shall provide and/or 
request additional information from the private  well  owner as deemed 
necessary for the effi cient operation of the program.

I. Rations by Category.  Water rations shall be determined by  user category.  Each 
 water user within the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System shall be 
classifi ed in one of the following groups:   Residential Single-Family and Multi-
Family, Commercial/Industrial, Public Authority, Golf Course, “other,” Non-
Revenue Metered Use, and Reclaimed Water Users.

J. Reduced Annual   Cal-Am Annual Production During Stage 6 Water Rationing.  
The   Cal-Am annual production limit shall be reduced by 35 percent during Stage 
6 Water Rationing.  The resulting production limit shall be further reduced by 
a  water rationing contingency determined by the Board.  Seven (7) percent of 
the remainder shall be the maximum   Cal-Am unaccounted for water use ration.  
The remaining water shall be the   Cal-Am annual production limit for all user 
categories.

K. Non-  Cal-Am Annual Production Limits During Stage 6 Water Rationing.  
Available production for other water distribution systems subject to Stage 6 
Water Rationing shall be determined using the same methodology as for   Cal-Am 
without including a deduction for unaccounted for water uses.  The non-  Cal-Am 
annual production limit for the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System 
shall be used as the maximum production limit.

L. Establishing the Rations.  Rations for each  user category shall be determined 
by the  General Manager by dividing the reduced available production by the 
percentage of use and by taking into consideration residential water needs to 
ensure health, safety and welfare.  The percentage of use for each user group shall 
be determined by the most recent  unrationed reporting year (July 1 through 
June 30) data provided by   Cal-Am for water users of that portion of   Cal-Am that 
derives water from the  MPWRS, and by data provided by the  District from its 
annual well reporting program for non-  Cal-Am distribution systems.

1. All water users shall be rationed by  user category as outlined in Rule 165 
( Stage 5 Water Rationing).

M. The  Board shall consider adopting restrictions on non-residential outdoor water 
use that  may include any or all of the following:  Limit outdoor watering to one 
day per week, one day every other week, or prohibit outdoor irrigation with 
water from the effected water resource system(s); prohibit irrigation of non-
turf areas with water from the affected water resource system(s); reduce  golf 
course irrigation from the effected  water distribution system(s) to a percentage 
of the amount required to water tees, greens and landing areas only.  The use of 
 reclaimed water, when available, shall not be restricted by this requirement.



166-4
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

N. Elimination or modifi cation of commercial/industrial variances for  Best 
Management Practices.  The  General Manager shall be authorized to require a 
percentage reduction of all commercial/industrial water users granted a variance 
for complying with BMPs for the type of use.  The amount of the percentage 
reduction shall be determined by the General Manager following review of the 
success of commercial/industrial rationing during  Stage 5 Water Rationing prior 
to  Stage 6 Water Rationing.

O. All water users shall cease operation and maintenance of all ornamental water 
uses (fountains, ponds, etc.) that use water from the effected water supply 
system(s).  Ornamental water uses supplied with water from other sources shall 
clearly display information about the source of water on or immediately adjacent 
to the use;

P. Prohibition on Use of Water for Dust Control.  The use of water from the 
Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System shall be prohibited for dust control 
purposes, except by prior approval of the General Manager.  Decisions of the 
General Manager shall be fi nal.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/29/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



167-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 167 -  STAGE 7 WATER RATIONING  

A. Stage 7 Water Rationing is defi ned as the seventh stage in the  District’s Expanded 
Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan that responds to a drought 
situation or emergency water supply shortage with a 50 percent reduction goal 
from system production limits.  Reductions are achieved by water use cutbacks by 
  user category and by per-capita water rations and a moratorium on water permits 
that utilize water credits.

B. Implementation.

1. Water Supply Limitation Trigger.  Stage 7 Water Rationing shall apply 
to all water users whose  source of supply is derived from the  MPWRS.  
Stage 7 Water Rationing shall become effective on June 1 or such earlier 
date as  may be set by the Board following the District’s May Board 
meeting if total usable storage in the MPWRS on May 1 is less than 
9,610 acre-feet.  If total usable storage is equal to or greater than 27,807 
acre-feet on May 1, no water rationing shall be imposed.

2. Implementation shall also occur following urgency action by Resolution 
of the  Board of Directors declaring that an emergency situation exists and 
immediate 50 percent reductions in water use from a distribution system’s 
production limit are necessary to ensure  public health, safety or welfare.

C. Sunset of Stage 7 Water Rationing. 

1. Water Supply Availability.  Stage 7 Water Rationing shall  continue to have 
force and effect until rescinded by Resolution of the Board of Directors 
upon a determination that the total usable storage in the MPWRS is 
greater than 9,610 acre-feet.  This determination will normally be made 
at the Board’s May meeting.  However, a determination to rescind Stage 
7 Water Rationing as early as the following January Board meeting can be 
made if the total usable storage in the MPWRS is equal to or greater than 
27,807 acre-feet on January 1.

2. In the event total usable storage is greater than 27,807 acre-feet, the 
 General Manager shall review   Cal-Am’s year-to-date production.  Upon 
compliance with the monthly year-to-date goals specifi ed in Table 1 of 
Rule 162 and, unless otherwise specifi ed in the Resolution rescinding 
Stage 7 Water Rationing, water users shall revert to  Stage 1 Water 
Conservation.  If   Cal-Am’s year-to-date production exceeds the year-to-
date goal specifi ed in Table 1 of Rule 162,   Cal-Am water users shall revert 
to  Stage 2 Water Conservation. 

D. Affected Water Users.  Stage 7 Water Rationing shall apply to all water users 
within the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System.  As necessary to ensure 
adequate water supplies, the Board of Directors may act within its discretion 



167-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

to authorize activation of Stage 7 Water Rationing within one or more water 
distribution systems in the  District.

E. Requirements imposed by implementation of the Expanded Water Conservation 
and Standby Rationing Plan through  Stage 6 Water Rationing shall remain in 
force.  Requirements  may be modifi ed or superseded by actions taken in this or 
future stages of the Expanded Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan.

F. Reduction Goal.  Stage 7 Water Rationing achieves water use reductions of 50 
percent of the   Cal-Am and non-  Cal-Am system production limits in each   user 
category as follows:   Residential single-family and multi-family, commercial/
industrial,  public authority,  golf course, “other,” non-revenue metered uses, and 
reclaimed water users.

G. Notice.

1.   Cal-Am shall provide written notice of mandatory water rationing to 
every residence and to every non-residential business or  water user within 
the   Cal-Am system via fi rst-class mail at least thirty (30) days before the 
fi rst day of rationing.  

Further,   Cal-Am shall send monthly reminders of water rationing in 
the water bill along with information showing the water ration and the 
quantity of the water ration consumed by the  responsible party.  Finally, 
  Cal-Am shall provide each responsible party with a survey form upon 
request.

2. All water distribution system operators affected by Stage 7 Water 
Rationing shall provide written notice of mandatory water rationing to 
every residence and to every non-residential business or water user within 
the  water distribution system via fi rst-class mail at least thirty (30) days 
before the fi rst day of rationing.  Further, the distribution system  operator 
shall send monthly reminders of water rationing in the water bill along 
with information showing the water ration and the quantity of the water 
ration consumed by the responsible party.  Finally, the  water distribution 
system operator shall provide each responsible party with a survey form 
at least once each calendar year.   Water distribution system operators 
shall ensure that notices provided or required by the District shall be 
distributed to the system water users.

3. The District shall contact all water users of private wells not supplying 
water to a distribution system within the  MPWRS at least thirty (30) 
days before the fi rst day of Stage 7 Water Rationing.  Contact shall be 
via fi rst class mail and shall explain the restrictions placed on the use of 
private wells during Stage 7 Water Rationing and shall provide and/or 
request additional information from the private  well  owner as deemed 
necessary for the effi cient operation of the program.



167-3
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

H. Rations by Category.  Water rations shall be determined by   user category.  Each 
 water user within the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System shall be 
classifi ed in one of the following groups:  Residential Single-Family and Multi-
Family, Commercial/Industrial, Public Authority, Golf Course, “other,” Non-
Revenue Metered Use, and Reclaimed Water Users.

I. Reduced Annual   Cal-Am Annual Production During Stage 7 Water Rationing.  
The   Cal-Am annual production limit shall be reduced by 50 percent during Stage 
7 Water Rationing.  The resulting production limit shall be further reduced by 
a  water rationing contingency determined by the Board.  Seven (7) percent of 
the remainder shall be the maximum   Cal-Am unaccounted for water use ration.  
The remaining water shall be the   Cal-Am annual production limit for all user 
categories.

J. Non-  Cal-Am Annual Production Limits During Stage 7 Water Rationing.  
Available production for other water distribution systems subject to Stage 7 
Water Rationing shall be determined using the same methodology as for   Cal-Am 
without including a deduction for unaccounted for water uses.  The non-  Cal-Am 
annual production limit for the Monterey Peninsula Water Resources System 
shall be used as the maximum production limit.

K. Establishing the Rations.  Rations for each user category shall be determined 
by the  General Manager by dividing the reduced available production by the 
percentage of use and by taking into consideration residential water needs to 
ensure health, safety and welfare.  The percentage of use for each user group shall 
be determined by the most recent  unrationed reporting year (July 1 through June 
30) data provided by   Cal-Am for water users of the   Cal-Am distribution system 
that derives water from the  MPWRS, and by data provided by the  District from 
its annual  well reporting program for non-  Cal-Am distribution systems.

1. All water users shall be rationed by user category as outlined in Rule 165 
( Stage 5 Water Rationing).

L. The  Board shall reconsider adopting restrictions on non-residential outdoor 
water use that  may include any or all of the following not adopted during  Stage 
6 Water Rationing:  Limit outdoor watering to one day per week, one day every 
other week, or prohibit outdoor irrigation with water from the effected water 
resource system(s); prohibit irrigation of non-turf areas with water from the 
effected water resource system(s); reduce  golf course irrigation from the effected 
 water distribution system(s) to a percentage of the amount required to water tees, 
greens and landing areas only.  The use of  reclaimed water, when available, shall 
not be restricted by this requirement.

M. Elimination or modifi cation of commercial/industrial variances for  Best 
Management Practices.  The General Manager shall be authorized to require a 
percentage reduction of all commercial/industrial water users granted a variance 



167-4
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

for complying with BMPs for the type of use.  The amount of the percentage 
reduction shall be determined by the  General Manager following review of the 
success of commercial/industrial rationing during  Stage 6 Water Rationing prior 
to Stage 7 Water Rationing.

N. Prohibition On The Use of Portable Water Meters and Hydrant Meters.  Water 
users utilizing portable water meters or hydrant meters shall be required to cease 
use of water from the effected water supply system(s).  Each  water  user reporting 
as “other” by the distribution system shall be notifi ed by the distribution system 
 operator of this requirement.  Portable water meters shall be returned to the water 
company at least 30 days before the implementation of Stage 7 Water Rationing.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



168-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 168 - WATER BANKS

A. Water banks shall be available to each  water user during Stages 5 through 7 
Water Rationing.  A  water bank shall allow each water  user to accrue the unused 
portion of a monthly ration for use in the current calendar year. 

B. Water banks shall be reset to zero on January 1 of each year.  Ten (10) percent 
of the remaining water bank on December 31 shall be credited to the following 
year’s water bank for three months to allow the establishment of a new bank.

C. On April 1, each water bank shall be reduced by the amount of banked water 
carried over on January 1.  Water banks  may not carry less than a zero balance.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99)



169-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 169 - WATER RATIONING VARIANCE 

A. The  General Manager shall assign additional water beyond the ration established 
in  Stage 4 Water Rationing through Stage 7 Water Rationing in the following 
circumstances upon submittal of the appropriate variance request form and fees.

B. The following variances shall be considered for additional water during Stages 4 
through 7 Water Rationing.

1. Medical and/or sanitation needs certifi ed by a doctor;

2. Hospital and/or health care facilities that have achieved all  Best 
Management Practices for those uses;

3. Drinking water for  large livestock;

4. Commercial/Industrial users that can demonstrate compliance with all 
BMPs appropriate for the type of use and where there is minimal exterior 
water use on the water meter or water supply serving the use;

5. Leaks, when an invoice is provided by a licensed plumber or contractor;

6. Commercial Laundromats with signs advising full loads only;

7. Business in a home on a case-by-case basis;

8. Riparian irrigation when required as a condition of a riverbank 
restoration  permit issued by the  District or as a condition of a riverbank 
erosion protection permit issued by the District.

9. Emergency, extreme, or unusual situations on a case-by-case basis;

C. No Variance.  The following categories of water use shall not qualify for special 
consideration under the provisions of this regulation:

1. Visitors other than those occupying short-term residential housing as 
defi ned in Rule 11 (Defi nitions) when the property  owner has submitted 
a  completed survey form with the applicable information about the 
occupancy of the  site;

2. Irrigation, other than variances allowed by Rule 169 of this regulation.

3. Filling spas, ponds, fountains, etc.;

4. Long-term leaks that are not repaired after reasonable notice.



169-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

D. Waiver of Excess Fees by Variance Application.  Any qualifying   water  user  may 
seek to have all or part of the  water waste fee for excess water use waived or 
forgiven through the Rationing Variance process set forth in this Rule.  Any  water 
 user  may seek relief from the  water waste fee upon substantial evidence that the 
excess water use was beyond the user’s control, and was not reasonably correctable 
in a timely fashion due to special and unique circumstances.  Due diligence must 
be shown to forgive any water waste caused by a leak; under no circumstance 
shall a leak justify the forgiveness of an excess use fee for more than three billing 
periods.  The applicant shall further demonstrate that all reasonable means have 
been taken to conserve water and minimize future water use.

1. The  General Manager or his agent may grant any application to waive 
water waste fees upon submittal of the appropriate evidence to warrant a 
variance.  All applicants for variance shall submit the appropriate Variance 
Request Form and processing fee of $60.  Any action to waive a water 
waste fee shall be recorded in writing and include a written explanation to 
substantiate and justify the waiver;

2. Although inspections shall not be required in all cases,  District staff 
shall use spot or random inspections as necessary to verify an applicant’s 
eligibility for a water rationing variance.  

3. Each  person making written application for a variance shall be notifi ed in 
writing of the disposition of their application.  Decisions of the General 
Manager are fi nal.

Rule added by Ordinance 92 (1/28/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



170-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 170 - WATER  USE SURVEY

A.  Stage 1 Water Conservation Survey

1.   Cal-Am shall conduct a confi dential survey of all water users of the   Cal-
Am system that derive their  source of supply from the  MPWRS.  This 
survey shall be required upon the effective date of this regulation. The 
survey shall request information to determine the number of permanent 
residents in each dwelling unit and the lot size of each residential  site 
with permitted water service; the types of uses and amount of water use 
on non-residential sites; and the number of users and types of use(s) 
served by each water meter. Only information deemed appropriate for the 
effective operation of this program will be requested.

  Cal-Am shall conduct the survey within 45 days of the effective date of 
Stage 1 Water Conservation.  Survey forms shall be  completed by the 
 responsible party and returned to   Cal-Am within 30 days of mailing.  
The  District shall have visual access to this data during Stages 1 through 3 
Water Conservation and shall be provided with a summary of the results 
of the survey by census tract within 105 days of the effective date of Stage 
1 Water Conservation.    Cal-Am shall maintain survey information by 
census tract and shall provide unrestricted access to individual water use 
records when the District is actively investigating a variance, appeal or 
other rationing program action.

B.  Stage 4 Water Rationing Survey.

1. The  General Manager shall conduct a survey of MPWRS water users 
not deriving their source of supply from   Cal-Am prior to effective date 
of  Stage 5 Water Rationing. The survey shall request information to 
determine the number of permanent residents in each  dwelling unit and 
the lot size of each residential site with permitted water use; the types of 
uses and amount of water use on non-residential sites; and the number 
of users and types of use(s) served by each water meter or  connection.  
Only information deemed appropriate for the effective operation of this 
program will be requested.

2. The District shall mail the survey form to water users not supplied water 
by   Cal-Am. Survey forms shall be completed by the responsible party 
and returned to the District within 30 days of mailing.  The District shall 
preserve the confi dentiality of this survey data.

C. Administration of Survey Data.

1.   Cal-Am Water Users.    Cal-Am shall maintain survey data for all MPWRS 
water users supplied water by   Cal-Am and shall provide the District 
with access to all data.   Cal-Am shall provide the District with an annual 



170-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

summary of survey information, or more frequently as required by the 
General Manager.    Cal-Am shall preserve the confi dentiality of survey 
data.

2. Non-  Cal-Am Water Users.  During  Stage 5 Water Rationing through 
Stage 7 Water Rationing, the District shall maintain survey data for all 
water users supplied water from non-  Cal-Am sources subject to those 
stages.

3. A full or partial survey  may be conducted as deemed necessary by the 
 District to maintain accurate data. 

4. District staff shall maintain the confi dentiality of   Cal-Am and non-  Cal-
Am residential customer survey data.  Violations of this provision shall be 
enforced as a misdemeanor under District law.

D. Reporting.

1. Responsibility of Water User.  

a. Each  responsible party shall be responsible for accurately 
reporting the number of permanent residents in the  dwelling unit 
or units or other information deemed appropriate for the effective 
operation of the program as requested on the survey form.

b. Upon activation of a water meter, each responsible party shall 
complete a survey form. 

i.   Cal-Am Water Users.  The  completed survey form shall be submitted 
to   Cal-Am by customers of that distribution system.

ii. Non-  Cal-Am Water Users.  The completed survey form shall be 
submitted to the District or its agent by all other distribution systems 
users required to complete a survey form during Stage 5 Water 
Rationing through Stage 7 Water Rationing.

c. All responsible parties shall submit revised survey forms whenever 
there is a change in the number of permanent residents in a 
residential dwelling unit or whenever there is a change in a  water 
  user category in non-residential uses.  Revised survey forms 
should be submitted to the appropriate party as indicated in Rule 
170, D, 1, b.

d. Property owners of short-term residential housing rentals shall 
provide information about the average number of annual 
occupants and the average rate of occupancy to the appropriate 
party as indicated in Rule 170, D, 1, b.



170-3
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

2. Misrepresentation Violation.  Any water user intentionally over-
reporting the number of permanent residents in a  dwelling unit or 
other information pertinent to establishing a water ration during Stages 
4, 5, 6 and 7 Water Rationing  may be charged with a misdemeanor 
punishable as an infraction as provided by Section 256 of the  Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District Law, Statutes of 1981, Chapter 
986.  Violations carry a maximum penalty of up to $250 for each offense.  
Each separate day or portion thereof during which any violation occurs 
or continues without a good-faith effort by the responsible water user to 
correct the violation, may be deemed to constitute a separate offense, and 
upon conviction thereof, may be separately punishable.

3. Penalties for Misreporting.  In  addition to any charge for misrepresenting 
information as provided in Rule 170, D-2, any or all of the following 
may be further imposed by the  General Manager or his agent during 
Stages 4, 5, 6 and 7 Water Rationing where the violation occurs and 
continues without a good-faith effort by the responsible  water user to 
correct the violation.  Decisions pursuant to this rule are appealable under 
Rule 70 (Appeals).

a. Intentional misrepresentation may be considered a violation of 
the  water waste provisions and shall subject the water  user to a fee 
for water waste; and/or

b. Intentional misrepresentation may cause the loss of any  water 
bank accrued and shall cause the  responsible party to be ineligible 
to accrue a water bank for a period of sixty (60) months; and/or

c. Intentional misrepresentation may cause the assignment of a 
reduced water ration that may be as low as a ration for one  person 
for a period of twelve (12) months following implementation of 
Stages 4, 5, 6 or 7 Water Rationing.

4. Audit.  The  District may periodically audit the survey data for accuracy.  
Upon question, the District may request additional evidence of residency 
to demonstrate the number of permanent residents at that  site as defi ned 
in Rule 11 (Defi nitions).

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



171-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 171 -  WATER WASTE FEES

A. Each occurrence of Water Waste or  Non-Essential Water Use, as those terms are 
defi ned by Rule No. 11 (Defi nitions), which continues after the  water user has 
had reasonable notice to cease and desist that type of water use shall constitute a 
fl agrant occurrence.

B. A $50 fee per day or portion thereof shall be assessed for each fl agrant occurrence 
of Water Waste or Non-Essential Water Use.  The fee shall accumulate daily until 
the occurrence is corrected.

C. A $150 fee per day or portion thereof shall be imposed for each subsequent 
occurrence (including multiple occurrences) of Water Waste or Non-Essential 
Water Use which occurs within 18 months of the fi rst occurrence.  The fee shall 
accumulate daily until the occurrence is corrected.

D. All fees shall be paid within 30 days.

E. Within the 30 day period, a water user  may seek waiver or forgiveness of all 
or part of the Water Waste fees on the basis of hardship.  The water  user must 
provide the  District with a written explanation as to why the fees should not 
be collected.  Staff shall be authorized to determine whether or not fees should 
be waived in full or in part, with the fi nal decision resting with the  General 
Manager.

F. After 30 days, fees which have not been paid or waived may result in a lien being 
placed on the property served by the water account.

G. Repeated occurrences or Water Waste or Non-Essential Water Use, which 
 continue or occur after the water user has had a reasonable notice to cease and 
desist that type of water use, or which continues or occurs after the water user has 
had a reasonable opportunity to cure any defect causing that type of water use, 
shall provide cause for the placement of a  fl ow restrictor within the water line or 
water meter. 

H. Decisions pursuant to this rule are appealable under Rule 70 (Appeals).

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



172-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 172 - LANDSCAPE WATER AUDITS

A. Landscape Water Audits shall be conducted under the supervision of an 
individual who has been certifi ed by the Irrigation Association to conduct audits 
and establish Landscape Water Budgets.  Each audit shall be signed by that 
person, who shall attest that the audit was performed under his/her direction.

B. Landscape Water Audits and Landscape Water Budgets shall be offered by the 
District and/or   Cal-Am or their agent free of charge to all water users of   Cal-Am 
with dedicated landscape meters, large irrigated areas over three acres, and large 
residential water users.  Water use records shall be reviewed annually to identify 
new water users required to establish a Landscape Water Budget by this rule.  
  Cal-Am shall provide the District with copies of all completed Landscape Water 
Audits and Landscape Water Budgets.

1.   Cal-Am water users shall be required to obtain Landscape Water Audits 
and establish Landscape Water Budgets if the property:

a. Has a dedicated landscape water meter; or

b. Is an irrigated area of greater than three acres; or

c. Is a  large residential  water  user.

2. All Landscape Water Budgets must be prepared by an individual certifi ed 
by the Irrigation Association.

3. All water users required to complete a Landscape Water Audit and 
establish a Landscape Water Budget shall have the option of obtaining 
a Landscape Water Audit and Landscape Water Budget from Landscape 
Irrigation Auditor of their choice at their own expense if the auditor is 
certifi ed by the Irrigation Association. 

4. Landscape Water Audits not conducted by the District and/or   Cal-Am 
shall be reported on a  Landscape Water Budget Application.  Landscape 
Water Budget Applications shall be submitted to Cal-Am.  Cal-Am shall 
forward a copy to the District within ten (10) days.  Landscape Water 
Audits not performed by the District or   Cal-Am are subject to review 
and acceptance by the District.  Landscape Water Audits and Landscape 
Water Budgets rejected by the District  may be appealed to the  Board of 
Directors pursuant to Rule 70 (Appeals).

5. Landscape Irrigation Auditors shall arrange on- site visits to compile 
water records to review historic use, measure irrigated sites, identify plant 
materials by general groups, determine irrigation water requirements, 
and estimate potential dollar and water savings.  Landscape Irrigation 
Auditors shall also develop system testing strategies, check pressure and 
fl ow rates, and conduct water application distribution tests.  Data shall 



172-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

be collected to determine irrigation uniformity and effi ciency.  Soil 
samples shall be examined to determine soil types and root zone depths. 
Landscape Irrigation Auditors shall observe system operations, locate 
irrigation zones, prepare  site audit maps and visually identify broken or 
misaligned equipment. All data from fi eld tests shall be summarized and 
this information used to generate monthly irrigation base schedules. A 
copy of the  Landscape Water Budget Application shall be provided to the 
water  user.  One copy of the Landscape Water Budget Application shall 
be submitted to Cal-Am.  Cal-Am shall forward a copy to the District 
within ten (10) days.

6.   Cal-Am shall provide quarterly compliance status notices to each  water 
user required to follow a mandatory Landscape Water Budget. 

C. Modifi cations To Audited Landscapes.  Following signifi cant modifi cation to an 
existing audited landscape, a new Landscape Water Audit shall be conducted to 
 establish an appropriate Landscape Water Budget.  It shall be the responsibility 
of the property  owner to ensure that a Landscape Water Audit is conducted 
within 60 days of any such change and to submit a new Landscape Water Budget 
Application to   Cal-Am.

D. Reporting and Analysis.    Cal-Am shall preserve water use records and budgets 
for water users subject to this provision of law for such time as the Expanded 
Water Conservation and Standby Rationing Plan remains effective.  Updated 
Landscape Water Budgets shall supersede previous data.  Quarterly, a report 
shall be compiled by   Cal-Am and provided to the District showing the 
account information and comparing the Landscape Water Budget with actual 
consumption.  During Stages 2 and 3, Cal-Am shall provide the District with 
monthly consumption reports for all customers with Landscape Water Budgets.

E. Landscape Irrigation Restrictions in the   Cal-Am system that derives its  source of 
supply from the  MPWRS.  Unless watering is by  drip irrigation, through a hand-
held hose with a  positive action shut-off nozzle, or performed by a professional 
gardener or landscaper, the following schedule shall apply:

1. Odd Numbered Properties shall water after 5 p.m. or before 9 a.m. 
on Saturdays and Wednesdays only.  This schedule shall also apply to 
properties located on the South or West side of the street in cities where 
no street address is available.

2. Even Numbered Properties shall water after 5 p.m. or before 9 a.m. on 
Sundays and Thursdays only.  This schedule shall also apply to properties 
located on the North or East side of the street in cities where no street 
address is available.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



173-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 173 - REGULATION OF MOBILE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS

A. No person,  extractor,   owner or  operator shall operate a mobile water distribution 
system without fi rst securing a written  permit from the  District.  In accordance 
with Monterey County Code (e.g., Title 15.20), no applications will be accepted 
or permitted for bulk hauled water for permanent potable use.   Applications 
for establishment of a mobile water distribution system shall be made pursuant 
to Rule 22 (Action On Application For Permit To Create/ Establish A Water 
Distribution System) and shall be investigated, considered, determined, and acted 
upon on the same terms and conditions as provided for the approval, conditional 
approval or denial of a creation establishment permit as stated in that rule.  The 
application shall identify each   source of supply and the location of each use.  For 
any subpotable mobile  water distribution system within the California-American 
Water Company (  Cal-Am)  service area, a condition of approval shall require 
that   Cal-Am be notifi ed so that a back-fl ow protection device can be installed 
pursuant to Monterey County Code Title 17.

B. In the event prior authorization is not obtained by reason of an emergency or 
health related situation, authorization for the  Mobile Water Distribution System 
permit shall be  sought from the District by submittal of a complete application 
compliant with Rule 21, within fi ve working days following commencement of 
the emergency or health related event.

C. Delivery and/or receipt of water from an unpermitted Mobile Water Distribution 
System shall be deemed  water waste, and shall be subject to fi ne, restriction, and 
cease and desist order as set forth in Rule 171.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); amended by Ordinance No. 96 (3/19/2001)



174-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 174 - REGULATION OF WELL OWNERS/OPERATORS AND EXTRACTORS  

A. During a  water supply emergency, each  owner/ operator or  extractor of a private 
water  well or other  water-gathering facility shall comply with the provisions of 
this regulation, as they relate to such well.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99) 



175-1
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

RULE 175 - WATER RATIONING ENFORCEMENT

A. Enforcement During Stages 4 through 7 Water Rationing.

1. Courtesy Notice.  For the fi rst instance of excess water use beyond the 
ration in Stages 4 through 7 Water Rationing, a water user shall be given 
written notice by the water system  operator of the excess use and shall 
be notifi ed that such violation constitutes  water waste and a water waste 
fee of $50 per day shall be collected in the event the water user again 
exceeds that user’s water ration during any future billing cycle under 
Stages 4 through 7 Water Rationing.  If the water user complies with all 
water rationing and water waste and  non-essential water use requirements 
during the next month following the fi rst instance of excess use, the 
excess use fee shall be deferred.

If the water user again exceeds that user’s water ration during any 
following month, the water waste fee of $50 per day shall be imposed 
immediately and shall accumulate daily until the occurrence is corrected.

2. Second Offense.  Upon the second occurrence of excess water use 
(including any prior excess water use during any prior stage) a water user 
shall be charged with water waste and assessed a fee of $150 per day for 
the second offense, plus the previously deferred $50 fi rst offense fee, by 
the  District or its agent.  The $150 fee shall accumulate daily until the 
occurrence is corrected.

3. Third Offense.

A third occurrence of excess water use (including any prior excess water
use during any prior stage) shall result in an excess water use charge
equivalent to the   Cal-Am per unit water charge at the  water  user’s level of
use multiplied by the number of units over a water ration, plus $150 per
day as provided in Rule 171 (Water Waste Fees).  A third occurrence of
excess water use shall provide cause for the installation of a  fl ow restrictor
in the water meter or water supply providing water to the property where
the over-use occurred.  Restrictors shall remain in place until conditions
are reduced to  Stage 2 Water Conservation or a less restrictive stage.  All
costs for the installation and removal of a fl ow restrictor shall be charged
to the property  owner of the  site subjected to this action.

4. Fourth Offense.  A fourth occurrence of water use in excess of the water 
ration shall result in fees and charges listed for a third offense and shall 
result in the installation of a fl ow restrictor by the system operator in the 
water meter or water supply providing water to the property where the 
over-use occurred.  Restrictors shall remain in place until conditions are 
reduced to  Stage 3 Water conservation or to a less restrictive stage.  All 
costs for the installation and removal of a fl ow restrictor shall be charged 
to the property  owner of the   site subjected to this action.



175-2
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District

B. Flow Restrictor Exemption.  Exemptions to the installation of a  fl ow restrictor 
as a means to enforce the water ration shall occur when there are provable risks 
to the health, safety and/or welfare of the   water  user.  An exemption shall be 
made for water meters serving three or more multi-family dwelling units by 
substituting an excess water use charge of $150 times the number of dwelling 
units located on the meter during each month in which a violation of the water 
ration occurs.  The responsible party shall be liable for payment of all excess water 
use charges.

C. All notices and assessments of  water waste and/or excess water use charges made 
by a    water distribution system  operator shall be reported to the  District.

Rule added by Ordinance No. 92 (1/28/99); Amended by Ordinance No. 119 (3/21/2005)



 
 
 

Appendix 3 
 

Leter from Kronick Moskovitz Tiedemann and Girard, 
dated May 17, 2006 on the proposed Seaside Basin Monitoring Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Minute Order re:  Request for Approval 
of the Seaside Monitoring and Management Program 

dated June 20, 2006 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

 
PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE YEAR 2006 

WITH 
PROJECTED YEAR 2007 



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER
PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET

Salary-Contract Staff Part-time Director (20 hours per week @ $75 per hour) 21 
weeks

$35,000 

Salary-Part-time Part-time Admin. Asst. (16 hrs. per mo. @$23 per hr.) 5 
months.  Take & transcribe minutes, assist in preparing Board 
agenda, etc.

2,000

Employee Benefits Retirement, health, dental, vision, etc. 800

Office Supplies, Postage General office, admin. Supplies and postage 500

Printing Copies, brochures, maps, enlargements, etc. 1,000

Insurance Workers Comp., liability and property insurance 500

Legal Notices Newspaper and legal notices 1,000

Publications & Memberships Water and related misc. publications and memberships (details 
unknown at this time).

500

Travel, Conferences & 
Meetings

Water related for Board and Admin. Staff 1,000

Mileage Reimbursement Reimbursement for staff 500

Computer 
Maintenance/Supplies

Maintenance services, printer ink, paper, etc. 1,000

Equipment Maintenance/Rental Misc. office and postage machines 500

Office Rental Est. 400psf @$1.50 per psf per month for five months. 3,000

Utilities Office-power, gas, phones, water, waste, etc. 500

Professional Services Legal counsel, audit, special studies, fees. Etc. 20,000

Sub Total $67,800 

Furniture & Equipment Est. office set-up costs for desk, chairs, locking file cabinets, 
computer, fax, copier, recorder, etc.

10,000

Total $77,800 

Reserve To allow for unexpected and unanticipated expenses incurred 
during the year.  All reserve funds will be used only with the 
approval of the Board and will be evaluated each year at the 
time of budget adoption.

22,200

Total $100,000 



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER
TENTATIVE ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET

FOR
ADMINISTRATIVE YEAR 2006 WITH

PROJECTED YEAR 2007

Five Months  
2006

Projected Annual 
2007

Salary-Contract Services $35,000 $84,000 

Salary-Part Time 2,000 5,000

Employee Benefits 800 2,000

Subtotals $37,800 $91,000 

Office Supplies, Postage $500 $1,200 

Printing 1,000 2,400

Insurance 500 1,200

Legal Notices 1,000 2,400

Publications & Memberships 500 1,200

Travel, Conferences & Meetings 1,000 2,400

Mileage Reimbursement 500 1,200

Computer Maintenance & Supplies 1,000 2,400

Equipment Maintenance & Rental 500 1,200

Office Rental 3,000 7,200

Utilities 500 1,200

Professional Services (Legal, Audit, etc.) 20,000 48,000

Subtotals $30,000 $72,000 

Equipment (Files Cabinet, Chairs, Desk, etc.) $10,000 $1,000 

Totals $77,800 $164,000 

Reserve $22,200 $0.00 

Totals $100,000 $164,000 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

 
PROPOSED 

 
 PLANNING AND MONITORING PLAN – 

 OPERATIONAL BUDGET 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE YEAR 2006 



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER
PROPOSED 

PLANNING AND MONITORING PLAN - OPERTIONAL BUDGET
ADMINISTRATIVE YEAR 2006

Professional Services $100,000 

Computer Software & 
Supplies

100,000

Total $200,000 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

 
PROPOSED 

 
CAPITAL REPLENISHMENT BUDGET 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE YEAR 2006 



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER
PROPOSED 

CAPITAL REPLENISHMENT BUDGET
ADMINISTRATIVE YEAR 2006

Exploratory Drilling, 
Geophysical Surveying 
and Monitor Well Drilling

$1,000,000 

Total $1,000,000 



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

 
Request for Payment 
September 13, 2006 

 
 
The following document represents the first request for payment from the Watermaster 
Board.  In the future, I suggest that at each regularly scheduled monthly Board meeting a 
summary of all purchases and payments made from the Watermaster accounts be listed 
on the regular monthly agenda on the Consent Calendar.  That way any Board Member or 
member of the public will have an opportunity to question any item they need more 
information or have concerns about.   
 
Listed on the following document is a request for payment for services rendered by your 
Chief Executive Officer for the month of August, 2006.  I recorded 116 hours of time I 
spent directly on Watermaster matters.  This included attendance at various meetings, 
telephone time, research, reading, looking for an office, etc.  I made a 20% reduction in 
billable time because I think that is only fair due to my being so new at this point in time. 
 
Under the Reimbursables section of the document is a list of expenses I incurred during 
the month of August to get up and running.  The first item is the deposit and first month’s 
rental for an office I found at 2600 Garden Road in Monterey.  Trying to find a small 
office to rent on the Peninsula was more difficult that I expected.  The office I leased for 
a year on Garden Road is a small one room, 193 square foot space on the second floor at 
2600 Garden Road, Suite 228.  Although small, I think it is adequate for the 
Watermaster’s office space needs at least for the immediate future.  I gave them a 
personal check for the $560.00 they required. 
 
The next item for $449.00 is for the purchase of computer software (Adobe Acrobat 7.0) 
needed to assemble and send out PDF documents.  This is needed for the monthly 
Watermaster agenda and related backup information that is sent to the Board and the 
other nearly 70 or so other interested persons.  To not have this software tool would 
probably require delivering the many packets either by hand or through the regular mail.  
That would be very burdensome, expensive and an ongoing expense. 
 
The remaining items including a telephone with answering machine, extension cord, 
computer discs, marking pens, calendars, business cards, and other routine office related 
supplies. 
 
Recommend approval and payment. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Dewey D Evans 
Chief Executive Officer  
           



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

 
 
 
Request for Payments: 
 
Salary-Contract Staff: 
 Chief Executive Officer-Dewey D Evans   
  116 hours worked August 2 through August 31, 2006 
  @$75. per hour = $8,700 less 20% learning time ($1,740) 
  equals          $6,960.00
Reimbursables:    
 Pay to Dewey D Evans for personal expenses paid on behalf of 
 Watermaster project: 
 
  Office rental-2600 Garden Road, Suite 228 (193 sq. ft.) 
  $280.00 Deposit and $280.00 per month-personal check       
  (The Saunders Co.)           560.00 
 
  Computer software for assembling programs for distribution 
  to Board and Other Interested parties—agendas, etc. (PDF)      
  (Adobe Store)            449.00 
 
  Office Telephone w/ answering machine with extension  
  cord and computer discs  (Office Depot)        166.98 
 
  Office Supplies; (marking pens, wall calendar, dayminder 
  calendar, etc.—Staples)             73.18 
 
  Business Cards  (Vista Print)            64.07 
 
      Total Reimbursable                     $1,313.23 
           
 
  
 
   
   
 
 


	WM Agenda--Sept. 13, 2006.DOC
	Soper Field, 220 Coe Avenue 
	 
	Watermaster board: 
	I. CALL TO ORDER 
	III. REVIEW OF AGENDA 
	 
	IV. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/ ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
	V. CONSENT CALENDAR 
	 No items for consideration 
	VI. OLD BUSINESS 
	  
	       1.   COMMITTEE REPORTS 



	(b)7-5-06 WM Minutes ljp.doc
	REGULAR MEETING 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	AD HOC ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  
	 
	I. CALL TO ORDER 
	VI. OLD BUSINESS 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	VII.   NEW BUSINESS  
	CLOSED SESSION—PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT—CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER    
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	VIII. NEXT MEETING DATE  
	   AUGUST 2, 2006 





	(b)8-2-06 WM  Minutes ljp.doc
	No items for consideration. 
	AD HOC ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  
	On a motion by Director Paul Bruno and seconded, on an unanimous voice vote, the Watermaster Board approved modifications to the Basin Management Plan as ordered by Judge Randall, begin process of hiring Martin Feeney as a facilitator of the ground water model and start the RFP process to hire a overall program manager. 
	 
	Approval of Employment Agreement for the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster Chief Executive Officer Dewey Evans. 
	No public comment was received on this item. 
	 
	On a motion by Director Albert and second by Director Knight, with an amendment on a unanimous voice vote, the Watermaster Board approved the modified employment agreement. 
	 
	I. CALL TO ORDER 
	VII. NEW BUSINESS 
	VIII. NEXT MEETING DATE 
	IX. ADJOURNMENT 



	SGBW Proposal.pdf
	SGB Program 9-5-06 FINAL_3 (1).pdf
	SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER.doc
	WM 2006 Admin. Budget.xls
	Admin Budget Projection

	SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER-Planning & Monitoring Plan-Operation Budge Admin. 2006.doc
	WM Planning & Monitoring Plan, etc. 2006 Admin. Budget.xls
	SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER-Capital Rep. Admin. 2006.doc
	WM Capital Replenishment-2006 Admin. Budget.xls
	Payment of Bills-Sept 06.doc



